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This is the core of

KeySpan’s business. 

Gas processing plants 

and their associated

infrastructure provide an

essential service to natural

gas producers and are a

key element in the natural

gas value chain.

KeySpan’s natural 

gas liquids (NGL)

infrastructure provides

further value by

processing, transporting

and storing NGLs

recovered from the 

raw natural gas stream.

KeySpan’s NGL marketing

business is tightly

integrated with KeySpan’s

facilities, offering a

competitive advantage to

KeySpan in the marketing

of NGLs across North

America.

NATURAL GAS
GATHERING AND
PROCESSING

NGL 
PROCESSING AND
TRANSPORTATION

NGL 
MARKETING

Strategically located 
in western Canada

Connected to key
North American markets

FACILITIES MARKETING

KEYSPAN FACILITIES INCOME FUND

CORPORATE INFORMATION 61

Officers

Jim V. Bertram
President and Chief Executive Officer

David G. Smith
Senior Vice President, 
Chief Financial Officer and Secretary

Ken W. Merritt
Vice President, 
Rimbey Corridor and Marketing

David A. Sentes
Vice President and Comptroller

K. Jamie Urquhart
Vice President, Foothills Region

Board of Directors

E. Peter Lougheed (1) (3) (5)

Counsel
Bennett Jones LLP

Calgary, Alberta

Jim V. Bertram(4)

President and Chief Executive Officer
KeySpan Energy Canada
Calgary, Alberta

Robert B. Catell
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
KeySpan Corporation
New York, New York

Michael B.C. Davies (2)

Principal
Davies & Co.
Banff, Alberta

Nancy M. Laird (1) (3)

Corporate Director

Gerald Luterman
Executive Vice President 
and Chief Financial Officer
KeySpan Corporation
New York, New York

H. Neil Nichols(3) (4)

President
KeySpan Energy Development
Corporation
Mississauga, Ontario

William R. Stedman(1) (2) (4)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
ENTx Capital Corporation
Calgary, Alberta

Wesley R. Twiss(2)

Corporate Director
Calgary, Alberta

(1) Trustee of the Fund

(2) Member of the Audit Committee

(3) Member of the Compensation 

and Governance Committee

(4) Member of the Health, Safety 

and Environment Committee

(5) Chairman of the Trustees 

and Chairman of the Board

Corporate Information

Investor Relations
John Cobb, Director Investor Relations 
Toll Free: 1-888-699-4853
Direct: 403-205-7670
Email: John_Cobb@keyspancanada.com 

Head Office
KeySpan Facilities Income Fund
Suite 600, 144 – 4th Avenue S.W.
Calgary, Alberta  T2P 3N4
Main phone: 403-205-8300
Website: www.keyspancanada.com

Stock Exchange Listing
The Toronto Stock Exchange
Trading Symbol KEY.UN

Transfer Agent
Computershare Trust Company of Canada
Calgary, Alberta

Auditors
Deloitte & Touche LLP

Calgary, Alberta

Legal Counsel
Macleod Dixon LLP

Calgary, Alberta

Annual General Meeting
Tuesday, June 8, 2004 at 2:00 p.m.
Sun Life Plaza Conference Centre, Plus 15 Level 
144 – 4th Avenue S.W.
Calgary, Alberta

KeySpanCovers  4/19/04  12:59 PM  Page 2



KeySpan Facilities Income Fund (the Fund) trades on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol KEY.UN.

With the completion of its February 26, 2004 offering, the Fund holds a 75% interest in KeySpan Energy Canada

Partnership (KeySpan). KeySpan operates one of the largest natural gas midstream businesses in Canada. Our

core assets consist of 13 natural gas processing plants and associated raw gas gathering pipelines and

compressors, all strategically located in the west central and foothills areas of Alberta. KeySpan also has an

extensive natural gas liquids (NGL) infrastructure comprised of pipelines, processing and storage, and an 

NGL marketing business serving customers throughout North America.

KeySpan Facilities Income Fund

◗ Stable cash flows driven by fee-for-service revenues 

from gas gathering and processing

◗ Solid footprint in western Canada with assets situated 

to capitalize on increased industry drilling activity

◗ Low risk profile with SR-3 stability rating from 

Standard & Poors

◗ Experienced operating personnel with particular 

expertise in sour gas handling

◗ Excellent growth opportunities supported by strong 

North American natural gas fundamentals
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KEYSPAN FACILITIES INCOME FUND

2 CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

On behalf of the Trustees and the Board of Directors, it gives me great pleasure to introduce the first

annual report of KeySpan Facilities Income Fund. This marks the inaugural year for the Fund with

the successful completion of the Initial Public Offering on May 30, 2003.

The Fund used the proceeds raised in the IPO to purchase a 39% interest in KeySpan Energy Canada

Partnership, one of the largest natural gas midstream businesses in Canada. Revenues generated

within the Partnership support the Fund’s cash distributions. In April 2004, the Fund will acquire an

additional 36% interest, raising its share to 75%.

Responsibility for the affairs of the Partnership rests with the Board of Directors of KeySpan Canada

Management Ltd., the Managing Partner. There are nine members of this Board, the majority of

whom are independent. The mandate of the Board is to provide oversight to the affairs of the

business, to guide the strategy development and to ensure high standards of corporate conduct. The

Board has three standing committees: Audit; Compensation and Governance; and Health, Safety and

Environment.

Three independent Trustees have responsibility for the stewardship of the Fund. We are all unrelated to

both KeySpan Corporation and the Partnership, and we are committed to representing your interests.

I am very pleased with the skill, experience and depth of knowledge that the Trustees and Directors

bring to their roles. We are committed to providing guidance and perspectives to management 

that will ensure good business practices, prudent corporate responsibility and strong corporate

governance. A key leadership priority is to conduct our business dealings with integrity while

pledging to protect the people in and around our facilities, protect the environment and protect 

our equipment.

As I look to the future, I am excited by the opportunities available

to KeySpan. The past five years have been spent laying the

groundwork and the Fund is well positioned to benefit from 

the strong natural gas fundamentals expected over the next

several decades.

I would like to thank my fellow Trustees and Directors for their insights and strategic guidance, for

their significant contribution in establishing the practices and procedures for their respective

committees and for their dedication to the success of the business. I would also like to thank the

management and employees for their hard work this past year. Under the capable leadership of

President and CEO Jim Bertram, they have a clear vision for the business and are focused on

providing an attractive return to unitholders.

On behalf of the Trustees and the Board of Directors,

E. Peter Lougheed
Chairman of the Trustees
Chairman of the Board of Directors

March 25, 2004

E. Peter Lougheed

We are committed to providing guidance and

perspectives to management that will ensure good

business practices, prudent corporate responsibility

and strong corporate governance.

Chairman’s Message
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KEYSPAN FACILITIES INCOME FUND

PRESIDENT’S MESSAGE 3

2003 was a milestone year for KeySpan with the creation of the Fund and its successful launch on

May 30. Since the close of the Initial Public Offering in May, our unit price has increased 25%, rising

from the $10.00 issue price to close the year at $12.50. In addition, we declared cash distributions of

63.56 cents per unit in 2003. Together, this represents a total return to unitholders of 31%.

The Fund will acquire an additional 36% interest in KeySpan Energy Canada Partnership in April,

2004, increasing its ownership in KeySpan to 75%. Distributions to unitholders are derived entirely

from KeySpan’s cash flow. To understand the Fund’s opportunities and risks, it is necessary to

understand KeySpan’s business.

KeySpan is in the natural gas midstream business; we don’t drill for or produce natural gas. Gas

processing plants, which are an essential link in the natural gas value chain, are the core of our business.

We gather and process raw gas in order to make it suitable for end use markets. This involves removing

water, impurities such as carbon dioxide and hydrogen sulphide, and recovering natural gas liquids

(NGLs) such as propane, butane and condensate. In addition to natural gas processing, we also process

and market NGLs to customers throughout North America. In our gathering and processing business,

our customers are the companies that produce natural gas in western Canada. Our business interests

are aligned with theirs and we both benefit when a producer’s natural gas is connected quickly.

Our gas processing plants are large and well maintained. They are equipped to process natural gas that

is high in hydrogen sulphide and are capable of extracting valuable natural gas liquids. Our work 

force is well trained and has a great deal of experience in sour gas handling. Our NGL infrastructure

and marketing operations are tightly integrated with our gas processing facilities, providing a clear

competitive advantage.

KeySpan’s business characteristics offer a low risk profile. The majority of our revenue is derived from

gathering and processing fees and this fee-for-service business is not exposed to volatility in commodity

prices. We have a diversified customer base and a geographic diversity of assets that further enhance the

stability of our cash distributions. Standard & Poor’s has recognized these attributes by assigning the

Fund an SR-3 stability rating, indicating the expectation of a high level of stability in distributions.

President’s Message

Jim V. Bertram
President and 
Chief Executive Officer

David A. Sentes
Vice President 
and Comptroller

Ken W. Merritt
Vice President 
Rimbey Corridor 
and Marketing

David G. Smith
Senior Vice President 
and Chief Financial Officer

K. Jamie Urquhart
Vice President 
Foothills Region

2003 was KeySpan’s

fifth consecutive 

year of growth.
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KEYSPAN FACILITIES INCOME FUND

4 PRESIDENT’S MESSAGE 

2003 Accomplishments
I am very pleased with our accomplishments over the past year. 2003 was KeySpan’s fifth consecutive

year of growth. KeySpan’s net income of $40.4 million in 2003 was 26% higher than in 2002 and

distributable cash flow for the period May 30 to December 31, 2003 was $26.3 million. In addition, we:

◗ Acquired an 18% interest in the Dow operated Fort Saskatchewan NGL fractionation facilities and
increased our ownership in the Rimbey Pipe Line Co. Ltd.

◗ Commissioned NGL truck loading and offloading facilities at several plants, increasing the utilization
of KeySpan’s NGL infrastructure assets.

◗ Upgraded our processing facilities at the Rimbey gas plant to enhance reliability, increase efficiency
and ready the plant for increased throughput.

◗ Completed plant turnarounds at four key facilities, positioning them for another four years of operation.

◗ Successfully completed the Initial Public Offering in May, raising gross proceeds of $170 million. 

◗ Issued $125 million of long term debt to ensure low cost funding and reduce refinancing risk.

Favourable Business Environment
I am very encouraged by the positive impact that North American natural gas fundamentals will have

on our business over the long term. We share the view held by many that natural gas prices will stay

strong in future years, that North American demand will continue to grow and that natural gas will

continue to be the fuel of choice for consumers. We believe that this trend will sustain the high levels

of drilling activity in the Western Canadian Sedimentary Basin as attractive economics encourage

producers to find and produce new natural gas reserves to meet the growing demand. This Basin is

the second largest source of natural gas in North America. It supplies one quarter of North American

demand and has sufficient excess pipeline capacity to deliver new gas found in western Canada to the

key demand centers on the continent.

Today we are seeing more activity in the western side of the Basin, in areas that are largely under-

developed and offer significant potential to producers. Economics did not support significant drilling

here for the 15 years following natural gas deregulation in 1985. Today they do. Drilling targets in

these areas are deeper, with multi-zoned geology, often yielding large reserves of natural gas that is

both high in hydrogen sulphide and rich in natural gas liquids. Gas with this composition attracts

higher processing fees and can only be processed at certain facilities. Much of this activity is occurring

in the capture areas surrounding our plants and near our existing gathering pipelines. We have the

expertise, the infrastructure and the capacity to process this gas.

PRE 1998
Gulf Canada Resources Limited

builds and operates gas plants 

to meet its growing western

Canadian production.

1998
Midstream business created. 

Gulf legacy assets and personnel are

transferred to new midstream entity. 

KeySpan Corporation buys a 50% interest.

Management develops a strategic vision and  

implements key infrastructure projects to position 

the business for growth. KeySpan Corporation

acquires remaining 50% interest in the business 

in 2000 and name is changed to KeySpan Energy

Canada Partnership.

MILESTONES
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KEYSPAN FACILITIES INCOME FUND

PRESIDENT’S MESSAGE 5

Focused Strategic Direction
Over the past five years, we have developed a clear vision for the business. Our goal is to become the

dominant midstream business in western Canada, delivering steady growth and solid returns to

unitholders. We will achieve this vision by focusing on a three-phased approach:

◗ We will protect our geographic franchise areas aggressively to ensure natural gas produced within
our capture area is always processed at a KeySpan plant. By providing superior customer service and
extending the reach of our gathering pipelines we will increase plant utilization and encourage
competitor plant consolidations.

◗ We will pursue expansion and optimization opportunities in and around our gas processing 
facilities to add revenues, increase the profitability of our existing business and strengthen our
competitive advantage.

◗ We will selectively pursue acquisition opportunities to grow our asset base, increasing returns to
unitholders. We will stay focused on acquisitions where we see attractive geology and where there
are competitive advantages through our operational expertise, barriers to entry or synergy with
existing operations.

Our growth strategy is anchored by our commitment to a conservative capital structure, in keeping

with our low risk profile. We will maintain prudent debt levels and access the capital markets 

when appropriate.

Aligned Management Team
Most of our management team have been with us since we began the business in 1998. We have spent

the past five years developing our vision and implementing key infrastructure projects to position

KeySpan for the growth that we anticipate. We established the Fund with an internal management

structure and our compensation has been developed to align the rewards for management and

employees with our unitholders’ objectives.

Positive Outlook for Growth
With the activity we expect to see over the coming decade, KeySpan is uniquely positioned to pursue

opportunities to grow our business. We are located in an area where drilling activity is increasing.

We have a large gathering pipeline system within our capture areas to bring new gas to our facilities.

The integration of our gas gathering and processing, NGL processing and marketing businesses

provides significant competitive advantage and enables us to generate incremental revenues all

along the value chain.

On February 26, 2004, we announced a public offering of 15.617 million units of the Fund. The

offering was priced at $12.60 per unit and proceeds will be used to acquire an additional 36%

interest from KeySpan Corporation in April 2004, increasing the Fund’s ownership to 75%. This

transaction provides increased liquidity for unitholders and positions us well for future growth.

In closing, there are a number of people I would like to thank for making our first year a success: our

unitholders for their support and confidence in our business; our customers for allowing us to work

with them to achieve their objectives; our Board of Directors for their support and guidance; and

finally, the employees of KeySpan who have embraced our common vision and come to work each

day looking for ways to make us more successful.

Jim V. Bertram
President and Chief Executive Officer

March 25, 2004

We share the view held

by many that natural gas

prices will stay strong in

future years, that North

American demand will

continue to grow and

that natural gas will

continue to be the 

fuel of choice.

MAY 2003
KeySpan Facilities Income Fund

IPO on the TSX. 17 million units

are issued with proceeds used 

to purchase a 39% interest 

in KeySpan Energy Canada

Partnership.

KEY.UN
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KEYSPAN FACILITIES INCOME FUND

6 KEYSPAN’S VALUE CHAIN

Gas 
Processing

The raw gas stream that arrives at the processing plant contains

many components. Some of these are commercially valuable

such as sales gas, natural gas liquids (NGLs) and sulphur.

Others are waste products and must be disposed of, such as

water, hydrogen sulphide (H2S) and carbon dioxide (CO2). 

In this stage, through the application of physical and chemical

processes to the raw gas stream, the sales products are

separated from the impurities. KeySpan charges for the use 

of the gas processing facilities on a fee-for-service basis that

allows for recovery of the gas plant operating costs and capital. 

Gathering 
and Compression

We collect customers’ raw gas in our gathering

network of pipelines that moves the raw gas to

KeySpan’s processing plants. In some cases, raw 

gas requires compression to ensure that it enters 

the gathering systems or gas plants with sufficient

pressure. KeySpan charges for the use of our pipelines

and compressors on a fee-for-service basis.

Sulphur is used extensively

in the manufacture of

fertilizers, plastics and

pharmaceuticals

throughout the world.

ACID GAS INJECTION

The acid gas (H2S and CO2), that is recovered

from the raw gas stream can be injected into 

a suitable underground reservoir. This is called

acid gas injection. Through the use of this

process, greenhouse gas emissions are reduced.

RAW NGL MIX

SULPHUR

SALES GAS

The customers’ sales gas is

delivered via transportation

pipelines for delivery to 

end-use markets.

KeySpan provides essential midstream services to natural gas producers. We do not

explore for or produce natural gas. Our business begins with the raw natural gas

produced by our customers and delivered into our gathering systems, for processing

at our plants.

� �

KeySpan’s Value Chain
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KEYSPAN’S VALUE CHAIN 7

Natural Gas Liquids
Marketing

Propane, butane, condensate and sulphur

produced through NGL processing or

acquired through product purchases are

sold to customers across North America.

KeySpan’s marketing department manages

a fleet of 300 railcars, providing access 

to markets across North America.

Natural Gas Liquids 
Transportation

NGLs are delivered to end-use

markets by pipeline or on trucks

or railcars from loading terminals

located adjacent to KeySpan

processing and storage facilities.

Natural Gas Liquids 
Processing

The raw NGL mix produced during the gas

processing stage must be further split into 

products such as propane, butane and

condensate before delivery to end-use 

markets. KeySpan charges customers 

a fee for separating these components.

Natural Gas Liquids Storage

Both the raw NGL mix and sales products are often

stored in underground caverns or above ground tanks

for future processing or sale.

� �

�

�

KEYSPAN FACILITIES INCOME FUND

Propane is sold primarily

as a heating fuel in 

areas where natural gas 

is not available. It is also

consumed in barbeques,

as an automobile fuel 

and as a feedstock for the

petrochemical industry.

Butane is primarily

consumed in refineries

for gasoline blending and

as a feedstock for the

petrochemical industry.

Condensate is often used

as a blending agent for

heavier grades of crude

oil, to enable the crude 

to flow freely in pipelines.

Our marketing professionals purchase

NGLs from over 100 different natural

gas producers and sell to about 100

customers. The customers are typically

retailers or industrial users across

North America.
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Calgary

KEYSPAN FACILITIES INCOME FUND

8 OPERATIONS REVIEW

GEOLOGY OF THE 

WESTERN CANADIAN

SEDIMENTARY BASIN

KeySpan’s facilities are

situated on the western side

of the Basin, where gas-prone

zones are typically deeper,

with larger reserves. They

often contain hydrogen

sulphide and natural gas

liquids and require significant

processing to meet sales

pipeline specifications.

Rimbey
Corridor 

Foothills
Region  

BRITISH 
COLUMBIA ALBERTA SASKATCHEWAN

ALBERTABRITISH
COLUMBIA

SASK.

Gas Processing and Gathering Facilities 2003
Average

Ownership License Daily Utilization
Interest Capacity Throughput Rate

(%) (mmcf/d) (mmcf/d) (%)

FOOTHILLS REGION

Strachan 61 275 180 65%

Brazeau River 52 218 95 44%

Nordegg River 78 75 65 87%

Paddle River 87 81 21 25%

Bigoray 43 81 29 36%

Tomahawk 67 16 1 6%

746 391 52%

RIMBEY CORRIDOR

Rimbey 50 422 219 52%

Gilby 78 71 36 51%

Medicine River 24 64 37 58%

557 292 52%

OTHER FACILITIES

Greenstreet 100 25 5 20%

Worsley 100 20 4 20%

Bilawchuk 46 11 0 0%

North Star 87 6 1 17%

62 10 15%

TOTAL 1,365 693 51%
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KEYSPAN FACILITIES INCOME FUND

OPERATIONS REVIEW 9

KeySpan’s midstream operations are organized into two distinct yet complementary business

segments: facilities and NGL marketing. What differentiates us are the size and geographic capture

areas of our facilities and the integration across business segments. KeySpan offers services and

products to customers from the wellhead through to the end-user.

FACILITIES

Our facilities segment consists of natural gas gathering and processing and NGL processing and

related infrastructure. We serve more than 170 producers and process gas from more than 50

producing fields. This is a fee-for-service business with no direct exposure to commodity price

volatility. We recover a significant portion of the operating costs of our facilities from our customers,

ensuring stable revenues throughout all stages of the business cycle.

Gathering and Processing
Our operations are focused in two core areas: Foothills Region and Rimbey Corridor, where we have

a network of more than 2,000 km of gathering pipelines that deliver producers’ gas to our plants for

processing. We also hold interests in smaller gathering and processing facilities in northern Alberta

and Saskatchewan.

The majority of our plants are designed to process sour gas (raw gas that is high in hydrogen

sulphide). Sour gas processing is complex. It requires specially equipped facilities and experienced,

highly trained plant personnel, and thus commands a higher fee for processing. We have made sour

gas processing a core competency and we are currently the second largest sour gas processor in

Alberta. The high capital cost of new facility construction and stringent government regulations are

significant barriers for new entrants into this business.

NGL Infrastructure
Raw gas containing natural gas liquids offers further opportunities to create incremental value from

our assets. KeySpan’s NGL facilities consist of NGL processing, storage and pipelines, as well as truck

and rail loading terminals. These facilities are tightly integrated with our natural gas processing

facilities, particularly in the Rimbey Corridor.

NGL MARKETING

Ownership of key natural gas and NGL infrastructure drives 

our NGL marketing business. We purchase NGLs from over 100

producers and sell the propane, butane and condensate to about

100 customers throughout North America. Access to processing

facilities, rail and truck terminals, storage facilities and pipeline

transportation enables us to offer a flexible range of services 

to customers.

We are using our assets

to create incremental

value throughout the

natural gas value chain.

Operations Review

NGL 
Marketing
20%

Facilities
80%

In 2003, 80% of cash flow

came from the fee-for-service

revenue generated from our

facilities segment. Our NGL

marketing segment contributed

20% of cash flow.
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KEYSPAN FACILITIES INCOME FUND

10 OPERATIONS REVIEW

Paddle
River

Tomahawk

Bigoray

Brazeau
River

Nordegg
River

Strachan

North Icon 
Pipeline

South Icon 
Pipeline

Strachan
North

Pipeline

Garrington
Caroline – Lanaway

Pipeline

Burnt
Timber
Pipeline

R5W5

T30

R5W5

T58
FOOTHILLS REGION OVERVIEW

Gas Processing Plants 6

Gross Gas Processing Capacity 746 mmcf/d

Gathering System Pipelines 1,600 km
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KEYSPAN FACILITIES INCOME FUND

OPERATIONS REVIEW 11

Foothills Region

The extensive reach of our gathering systems, connected to our large sour gas processing facilities,

creates a franchise position for KeySpan in the Foothills Region.

Three large facilities in this region, Strachan, Nordegg River and Brazeau River, represent 42% of our

total raw gas processing capacity, and are equipped to handle hydrogen sulphide and extract NGLs.

The three facilities are interconnected by large diameter sour gas gathering systems. This unique

feature gives KeySpan the ability to redirect gas between plants to increase efficiency, maximize

profitability and reduce producer downtime. These assets cannot easily be duplicated.

The Foothills Region offers the largest potential for future growth. Areas surrounding our major

facilities are under-developed and highly prospective. This region has seen an increase in drilling

activity over the past three years, driven by higher gas prices and attractive geology.

In this region, we are pursuing expansion and optimization opportunities to add revenues, increase

the profitability of our existing business and strengthen our competitive advantage. As the dominant

processor in the area, KeySpan is ideally situated to take advantage of increased production of natural

gas. With an average utilization rate of 52%, our plants are able to handle more gas without further

capital investment. We are focused on providing cost effective, reliable services to our customers to

increase our plant utilization and cash flow.

NEW DEVELOPMENTS

Acid Gas Injection
In 2003, we began operating our acid gas injection system at the Brazeau River gas plant. This is a

process whereby waste products from the raw gas stream, including hydrogen sulphide and carbon

dioxide, are re-injected into a depleted natural gas reservoir. Implementing acid gas injection has

increased the plant’s sulphur handling capacity and eliminated a bottleneck in the plant process.

Revenues have increased, as the plant is now able to operate at its licensed capacity and accept the

increasing amounts of sour gas being produced in the area.

◗ Commissioned NGL truck loading terminals at
the Strachan and Paddle River plants to deliver
raw NGL mix directly to our NGL processing
facilities for processing, further strengthening
our business integration.

◗ Expanded the Easyford battery to increase the
production of sour solution gas delivered to 
the Bigoray plant.

◗ Initiated process modifications at the Bigoray
plant to accommodate higher quantities of 
sour gas.

Left to right: Nancy Price, Wayne Petovello, Bradley White, Cheryl Pritchard

Foothills is a region

of big assets and 

big potential.

FOOTHILLS REGION 2003 HIGHLIGHTS
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12 OPERATIONS REVIEW

KEYSPAN FACILITIES INCOME FUND

Rimbey

Gilby

Medicine
River

Fort
Sask.

Pipeline

FORT SASKATCHEWAN
NGL Processing & 

Storage Facility

EDMONTON

Rimbey
Edmonton
Terminal

Rimbey
Pipeline

Crystal
Pipeline

Wilson Creek
Express Pipeline

Medicine River
Rimbey Pipeline

Gull Lake
Pipeline

R2W5

T38

R18W4

T58

RIMBEY CORRIDOR OVERVIEW

Gas Processing Plants 3

Gross Gas Processing Capacity 557 mmcf/d

Gathering System Pipelines 400 km
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KEYSPAN FACILITIES INCOME FUND

OPERATIONS REVIEW 13

Rimbey Corridor

The Rimbey Corridor is located in west central Alberta, within a key natural gas production region. This

area is attracting producers who are moving into this region as the eastern side of the Basin matures.

These companies are undertaking large drilling programs in the areas around our plants, applying

expertise developed in the shallower parts of the Basin. In addition to sweet gas development, sour gas

production has increased in the area surrounding the Rimbey plant.

KeySpan has a significant presence in this area, anchored by the Rimbey gas plant and an extensive

gathering system. The Rimbey Corridor represents 41% of our gross raw gas processing capacity.

The Gilby plant is interconnected with Rimbey, creating operational flexibility, enhancing reliability

and offering increased processing options.

Over the past five years, we have invested significant capital 

to upgrade the Rimbey plant to meet and exceed current

environmental requirements. The plant processes sweet and sour

gas and extracts specification NGLs like propane, butane and

condensate. Rimbey is connected by rail, truck and pipeline to the

NGL hub at Fort Saskatchewan and from there to key NGL

markets across North America. This integration makes the Rimbey

plant the region’s processing plant of choice.

Our goal is to become the dominant gas processor in the Rimbey

Corridor. To that end, we are aggressively pursuing new gas

processing opportunities and striving to provide superior

customer service at our highly efficient, low cost facilities.

We see further opportunities to expand our business through the integration of our assets. The

physical link between our NGL infrastructure and our primary gathering and processing assets gives

us a competitive advantage. With access to all of the NGLs that pass through our plants, we can

capture additional value through our NGL storage, transportation and marketing businesses.

NEW DEVELOPMENTS

CO2 Liquification Facility
KeySpan is a 50% partner in the construction of a CO2 liquification facility at the Rimbey gas plant to

turn waste carbon dioxide into liquid form for commercial use. This project utilizes our existing

infrastructure, resulting in better economics and lower capital costs. In addition to providing an attractive

return, it will enhance our competitive advantage and reduce CO2 emissions in the Rimbey area.

◗ Completed the most extensive plant turnaround in recent history at the Rimbey 
plant to ensure continued integrity of the facility and to comply with new regulations. 

◗ Completed key upgrades to the Rimbey plant, including a new flare system 
that minimizes flare smoking and ground-level heat radiation.

◗ Tied-in a customer compressor on KeySpan property to bring additional 
gas volumes to the Rimbey plant.

◗ Initiated construction of a CO2 liquification facility at the Rimbey plant.

The Rimbey gas plant is

the region’s processing

plant of choice.

Left to right:
Jim Hunter, Marzio Isotti, 
Bill Wells, Ken Merritt

RIMBEY CORRIDOR 2003 HIGHLIGHTS

Keyspan 2003 Pgs 1-60  4/20/04  8:56 PM  Page 13



NGL Infrastructure

KeySpan processes NGLs into end-use products such as propane, butane and condensate using our

processing facilities in Fort Saskatchewan, Alberta. One of four key NGL marketing hubs in North

America, Fort Saskatchewan is a major demand center for NGLs and the starting point for two major

NGL export pipelines to key markets in the United States and eastern Canada. KeySpan’s Rimbey and

Gilby plants also process NGLs into specification products.

Rail and truck loading terminals are located at our key processing

plants and at our NGL processing and storage facilities in Fort

Saskatchewan. Our NGL pipelines move products from the

Rimbey gas plant to the Rimbey Edmonton Terminal, and from

there on to our Fort Saskatchewan facilities or to other key

markets in the Edmonton area. Large underground salt caverns

and above ground storage tanks enable KeySpan and our

customers to store NGLs for future resale.

We receive fees for handling products at rail and truck terminals, for processing at fractionation

plants, for storing products underground and for transporting by rail and pipeline.

Our NGL infrastructure links our gas gathering and processing facilities with our marketing business.

This integration, from our gas processing facilities to the Fort Saskatchewan hub, creates significant

competitive advantages for our NGL marketing business.

KEYSPAN FACILITIES INCOME FUND

◗ Constructed NGL loading facilities at the Strachan, Paddle River
and Rimbey gas plants to move additional NGL volumes to
Rimbey and Fort Saskatchewan for processing.

◗ Acquired an 18% interest in Dow’s Fort Saskatchewan facilities.

◗ Acquired an additional 5% of Rimbey Pipe Line Co Ltd.

Rimbey

Gilby

Medicine
River

Fort
Sask.

Pipeline

FORT SASKATCHEWAN
NGL Processing & 

Storage Facility

EDMONTON

Rimbey
Edmonton
Terminal

Rimbey
Pipeline

Crystal
Pipeline

Wilson Creek
Express Pipeline

Medicine River
Rimbey Pipeline

Gull Lake
Pipeline

R2W5

T38

R18W4

T58

14 OPERATIONS REVIEW

NGL INFRASTRUCTURE 2003 HIGHLIGHTS

NGL Processing and Storage Facilities  2003
Ownership License Average Daily Utilization

Interest Capacity Throughput Rate
(%) (bbls/d) (bbls/d) (%)

NGL PROCESSING

Rimbey Gas Plant 50 31,500 13,912 44%

Gilby Gas Plant 78 3,200 1,736 54%

Fort Saskatchewan (Enerpro) 31 30,200 28,347 94%

Fort Saskatchewan (Dow) 18 30,000 25,225 84%

NGL PIPELINES

Fort Saskatchewan (Enerpro) 31 210,000 127,190 61%

Rimbey Pipeline 45 45,000 40,122 89%

Judy Creek Pipeline 19 31,950 11,976 37%

NGL STORAGE

Fort Saskatchewan (Enerpro) 31 7,324,000 n/a n/a

Fort Saskatchewan (Dow) 18 2,000,000 n/a n/a
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OPERATIONS REVIEW 15

NGL Marketing

Our team of marketing professionals operates one of western Canada’s largest natural gas liquids

marketing businesses, buying NGL products for resale to customers across North America.

We purchase NGLs either in unprocessed form, called NGL mix, or as specification products like

propane, butane and condensate. We acquire a large portion of our product as it is extracted at our

natural gas processing facilities. NGL mix is transported by pipeline or truck for processing at one of

KeySpan’s fractionation facilities. We have a long term NGL purchase contract with ConocoPhillips that

supplies approximately 23% of our NGL supply volumes.

Since NGLs are a by-product of processed natural gas, production is relatively constant throughout

the year. However, the demand for natural gas liquids, particularly propane, is higher during the

winter months and lower in the summer. To accommodate this

seasonality, surplus product is placed in storage throughout the

summer and fall and removed from storage in winter for delivery

to market. To mitigate the risk of price fluctuations on our NGL

inventory, we can fix the future sale price through forward sales

and product swaps.

Cash flow from our marketing business is derived from the margin between the revenue received from

product sales and the cost of acquiring, processing and transporting the purchased products. The

integration of our NGL infrastructure enhances our success as marketers by providing access to

supply, as well as flexibility around processing, transportation and storage.

KEYSPAN FACILITIES INCOME FUND

◗ Achieved record NGL sales of 36,500 barrels per day.

◗ Diversified producer base and increased NGL supply by 5,000
barrels per day through superior customer service.

NGL MARKETING 2003 HIGHLIGHTS

Products Customers

Propane Petrochemicals

Butane Refiners

Condensate Wholesalers

Sulphur Retailers

Left to right: 
Shannon Johnson, 
Rick Pineau, 
Amie Standish, 
Mike Freeman, 
Lawana Chun-Turner
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16 OPERATIONS REVIEW

KEYSPAN FACILITIES INCOME FUND

Growth Opportunities

Our goal is to be the midstream processor of choice for natural gas producers in western Canada. We

see a number of opportunities to create additional value from our existing assets. These internal

growth opportunities – in our own back yard – require little or no additional capital investment.

INCREASED UTILIZATION

KeySpan’s plants are strategically positioned adjacent to the lands where increased drilling activity is

expected over the next decade. Available capacity and prompt customer service allow producers to

connect their gas quickly.

Natural gas production in our areas is increasingly sour, and KeySpan is experienced and well

positioned to take advantage of this growing sour gas processing requirement. With current plant

utilization averaging 51% and an extensive gathering system to collect new gas, we are able to

accommodate increased volumes with minimal capital expenditures.

FACILITY EXPANSION AND OPTIMIZATION

We are continually evaluating expansion and optimization opportunities in the areas surrounding

our facilities.

◗ Pipelines – Actively pursuing opportunities to expand the gathering systems around our plants in
order to extend our geographic reach.

◗ Compression – Continuing to work with our existing and potential customers to provide additional
services, such as compression, to increase raw gas volumes in our processing facilities.

◗ NGL Facilities – Exploring opportunities to increase capacity at existing NGL processing facilities and
identifying areas where additional NGL transportation and storage capacities are required.

◗ Plant Upgrades – Upgrading existing plants to accommodate increased raw gas volumes, reduce
costs and enhance revenue from ancillary services.

ENVIRONMENTAL OPPORTUNITIES

Our facilities are well positioned to take advantage of opportunities arising from new H2S recovery

regulations and the adoption of the Kyoto Protocol. Our past investments to meet sour gas regulatory

requirements position us well for the future. Over time, as competitors are required to make similar

investments in their facilities, we believe that there will be opportunities to process gas from these

plants at KeySpan facilities.
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBIL ITY 17

Economic growth, environmental protection and social responsibility are all critical to the success of

our corporate strategy. Our commitment to the well being of our neighbours, employees, customers

and unitholders is based on relationships that are built on trust and mutual respect. This approach

contributes to economic, social and environmental advances that benefit KeySpan and our

stakeholders. This commitment to prudent and responsible behaviour forms the basis of our

corporate responsibility program, which we have integrated into our everyday operations.

KEYSPAN FACILITIES INCOME FUND

◗ Reduced CO2 emissions at the Brazeau River gas plant by
35,000 tonnes annually.

◗ Achieved a number of safety milestones, led by the Paddle
River gas plant, which celebrated 20 years without a lost
time accident in 2003.

◗ Completed plant maintenance turnarounds at four major
facilities, positioning them for another four years of operation.

Corporate Responsibility

In 2003, we commissioned our acid gas injection project at 

the Brazeau River gas plant, combining a reduction in

environmental emissions with process improvements to enable

additional raw gas to be processed. Waste products from the

raw gas stream, including H2S and CO2, are now re-injected

into a depleted natural gas reservoir, significantly reducing

emissions. This process also eliminated a bottleneck in sulphur

handling, allowing the plant capacity to be fully utilized. 

The project was a finalist in the climate change category 

at the 2003 Alberta Emerald Foundation for Environmental

Excellence awards.

Our Rimbey gas plant was the first sour gas plant to voluntarily

upgrade sulphur recovery facilities, reducing sulphur emissions

by more than 75%. Our environmental leadership was

recognized with a 2002 Emerald Award in the Large Business

category. This project also increased our sour gas processing

capacity and positioned us to benefit from increased activity 

in the area.

Our latest project also combines good business and

environmental excellence. We are building a CO2 liquification

facility and loading terminal at the Rimbey gas plant, making

use of our existing infrastructure. Slated for commissioning 

in April, we will sell CO2 extracted at the plant to industrial

markets, effectively turning a waste product into cash flow. In

addition to the revenues generated from the sale of CO2, this

project will also significantly reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

GOOD BUSINESS AND ENVIRONMENTAL EXCELLENCE

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY 2003 HIGHLIGHTS

Left to right: Paul Walker, Peter Renton, Rod Sikora, Megan Hurl
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KEYSPAN FACILITIES INCOME FUND

18 CORPORATE RESPONSIBIL ITY

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBIL ITY 19

KEYSPAN FACILITIES INCOME FUND

PROTECTING PEOPLE

We are committed to conducting our operations in a manner that protects the health and safety of

our employees, contractors and the public. We continuously evaluate and improve policies and

operating practices, taking into account changes in laws and regulations, technical developments,

industry standards and the operational needs of our facilities.

To ensure that KeySpan operates safely and efficiently, our employees are highly trained, experienced

and capable of adapting to new technologies and regulations. Having a trained workforce whose skills

are regularly measured and upgraded results in fewer incidents, less equipment downtime and

increased productivity and profitability. To maintain this high operating standard, we have developed

an innovative employee training program in which all KeySpan operations personnel participate.

We believe that ongoing communication and information sharing will lead to more collaborative

relationships between industry and the public. KeySpan staff are actively involved with the

stakeholder groups in the communities within our operating areas.

PROTECTING THE EQUIPMENT

To be successful, our facilities must be designed and maintained in a manner that ensures their

continuous operation over long periods of time. KeySpan’s integrity management program provides

the expertise and processes necessary to protect our employees, facilities, the environment and the

public. We employ expert facility inspectors who conduct regular inspections and provide support to

our plant operations staff on an ongoing basis. This integrity management program ultimately

reduces operating costs while minimizing risks. In this way, regulatory compliance is assured and our

employees, the public and the environment are protected.

PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT

Environmental protection is an integral part of all business activities, from initial acquisition through

to final decommissioning and reclamation. A fundamental belief at KeySpan is that compliance with

environmental laws and regulations is the responsibility of all of our workers.

Corporate environmental operating practices and training programs are structured to ensure that

business is conducted in an environmentally sound manner, reducing environmental risk and future

reclamation costs. Our environmental programs focus on prevention of environmental impacts and

on swift remediation should an event occur.

At KeySpan, corporate

responsibility means a

commitment to protect

our employees and the

public, our equipment

and the environment.
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20 FINANCIAL REVIEW

This report includes a financial review of the Fund for the period since inception on April 3, 2003 to

December 31, 2003. The Fund does not actively operate a business. Distributions to unitholders are

derived entirely from KeySpan’s cash flow. To understand the Fund’s opportunities and risks, it is

necessary to understand KeySpan’s business. Therefore, this report also includes a financial review of

the Partnership, which encompasses all of the business of KeySpan.

FUND STRUCTURE (Effective April 1, 2004)

As at December 31, 2003, the Fund owned a 39.09% indirect interest in KeySpan. The Fund’s interest

in KeySpan will increase to 75% after the closing of its $197 million public offering on April 1, 2004.

The following diagram illustrates the relationship among the parties holding an interest in KeySpan.

KeySpan Canada
Management Ltd.

(the Managing Partner)

Unitholders

KeySpan Facilities 
Income Fund 

(the Fund)

KeySpan Facilities
Commercial Trust

(the Commercial Trust)

KeySpan Facilities 
Limited Partnership

(the LP)

KeySpan Corporation

KeySpan Energy 
Development Co. 

(KEDCO)

100%

99.999%(1)

75%0.005%

100%
CT Units

100%
CT Notes

25%

25% 75%

100%

KeySpan Energy 
Canada Partnership

(KeySpan)

KEYSPAN FACILITIES INCOME FUND

Financial Review

(1) The remaining 0.001% interest in the LP
is held by the LP General Partner, which
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Fund
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KEYSPAN FACILITIES INCOME FUND AND KEYSPAN ENERGY CANADA PARTNERSHIP

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT 21

Management’s Report

The Management of KeySpan Canada Management Ltd. is responsible for the preparation of the

accompanying consolidated financial statements. These consolidated financial statements have been

prepared by Management in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles

(“GAAP”) and include amounts that are based on estimates and informed judgements. Financial

information contained throughout this Annual Report is consistent with these consolidated financial

statements.

Management maintains a system of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that financial

records are reliable and accurate, and to facilitate the timely preparation of financial statements.

Deloitte & Touche, independent external auditors, have been appointed by the Board of Directors of

KeySpan Canada Management Ltd. They have independently examined the enclosed consolidated

financial statements and provided an independent audit opinion.

The Board of Directors of KeySpan Canada Management Ltd. has appointed a three person Audit

Committee, consisting of independent directors, which meets regularly with Management and

external auditors. The external auditors have access to the Audit Committee without requiring

Management’s approval. The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial statements

with Management and the external auditors prior to approval by the Board of Directors.

Jim V. Bertram David G. Smith
President and Chief Executive Officer Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
KeySpan Canada Management Ltd. KeySpan Canada Management Ltd.
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22 MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Management’s discussion and analysis is a review of the results of operations and the liquidity and capital resources

of KeySpan Facilities Income Fund (the “Fund”). It should be read in conjunction with the financial statements of the

Fund and the notes thereto.

KeySpan Facilities Income Fund
The Fund was created on April 3, 2003. In connection with the Initial Offering, the Fund acquired a

39.09% indirect interest in KeySpan. Pursuant to transactions completed in connection with the

Initial Offering, KeySpan acquired KEFL and KECC on May 30, 2003. The Statement of Operations

contained in the consolidated financial statements of KeySpan presents the results of operations of

KeySpan for the full twelve-month period and the results of operations of KEFL and KECC from May

30 to December 31, 2003. The information presented by KeySpan for the comparative period of 2002

represents only the results of operations for KeySpan. Accordingly, some of the variances described in

this report include the effect of these acquisitions and readers are cautioned that certain information

included in the financial statements for prior periods may not be directly comparable.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Since its inception on April 3, 2003, the Fund had net earnings of $8.6 million or $0.5042 per Trust

Unit based upon 17,000,000 Units outstanding ($0.6418 per Trust Unit based upon the weighted

average number of units outstanding during the period since inception).

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Fund does not actively operate a business and is dependent upon distributions from KeySpan for

earnings. Since commencing operation, the Fund has received $9.3 million of distributions from

KeySpan and paid distributions to Unitholders of $9.3 million. In addition, as at December 31, 2003,

the Fund had accrued $1.5 million of distributions receivable from KeySpan and $1.5 million of

distributions payable to Unitholders. It has no cash from operations and no external debt other than

a small bank overdraft.
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AUDITORS’  REPORT 23

Auditors’ Report

To the Trustees of KeySpan Facilities Income Fund:

We have audited the consolidated statement of financial position of KeySpan Facilities Income Fund

as at December 31, 2003 and April 3, 2003 and the consolidated statements of income and

unitholders’ equity and cash flows for the period from inception on April 3 to December 31, 2003.

These financial statements are the responsibility of the management of KeySpan Canada

Management Ltd. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on

our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those

standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the

financial position of KeySpan Facilities Income Fund as at December 31, 2003 and April 3, 2003 

and the consolidated statements of income and unitholders’ equity and its cash flows for the period

from inception on April 3 to December 31, 2003 in accordance with Canadian generally accepted

accounting principles.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants
Calgary, Canada

February 25, 2004
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24 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF F INANCIAL POSITION

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
(All amounts expressed in Canadian dollars)

December 31, April 3,
2003 2003

As at $ $

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents – 10
Distributions receivable 1,543,693 –

1,543,693 10
Investment in KeySpan Energy Canada Partnership (note 3) 155,983,644 –
Investment in KeySpan Canada Management Ltd. (note 3) 8,318 –

157,535,655 10

LIABILITIES AND UNITHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities

Bank indebtedness 85 –
Distributions payable 1,543,600 –

1,543,685 –

Unitholders’ equity (note 4) 155,991,970 10

157,535,655 10

157,535,655 10

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

Approved on behalf of the Fund by its administrator, KeySpan Canada Management Ltd.

Wesley R. Twiss Jim V. Bertram
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND UNITHOLDERS’  EQUITY 25

Consolidated Statements of Income and Unitholders’ Equity
(All amounts expressed in Canadian dollars)

From inception on
April 3 to

December 31, 2003
$

Revenues

Equity earnings from KeySpan Energy Canada Partnership  
and KeySpan Canada Management Ltd. (note 3) 8,572,270

8,572,270
Expenses

Management and administrative (note 6) –
Other expenses 100

100

Net earnings 8,572,170

Number of trust units outstanding at the end of the period 17,000,000
Net earnings per trust unit (basic and diluted) 0.5042

Weighted average number of trust units outstanding 13,356,618
Net earnings per weighted average trust unit 0.6418

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF UNITHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Unitholders’ equity, beginning of period 10
Net earnings 8,572,170
Units issued, net of transaction fees (note 4) 158,225,000
Units cancelled (10)
Distributions (note 7) (10,805,200)

Unitholders’ equity, December 31, 2003 155,991,970

Distributions to unitholders and distributions per trust unit (note 7)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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26 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(All amounts expressed in Canadian dollars)

From inception on
April 3 to

December 31, 2003
$

Operating Activities

Net earnings 8,572,170
Items not requiring cash:

Equity earnings from KeySpan Energy Canada Partnership and KeySpan Canada Management Ltd. (8,572,270)
Distributions received from KeySpan Energy Canada Partnership –

(100)
Changes in non-cash working capital (93)
Cash (used in) provided by operating activities (193)

Investing Activities

Acquisition of interest in KeySpan Energy Canada Partnership (158,217,111)
Acquisition of interest in KeySpan Canada Management Ltd. (7,889)

Cash provided by (used in) investing activities (158,225,000)

Financing Activities

Issuance of trust units, net of transaction fees (note 4) 158,225,000
Cancellation of trust unit (10)
Distributions received 9,261,615
Distributions paid (9,261,600)
Increase in non-cash working capital 93

Cash provided by (used in) financing activities 158,225,098

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (95)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 10

Bank indebtedness, end of period (85)

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Interest paid –
Income taxes paid –

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 27

1. STRUCTURE OF THE FUND

KeySpan Facilities Income Fund (the “Fund”) is an unincorporated open-ended trust established under the laws of
the Province of Alberta pursuant to the Fund Declaration of Trust dated April 3, 2003. The Fund indirectly owns a
39.1% interest in KeySpan Energy Canada Partnership (“KeySpan” or the “Partnership”). 

The Fund commenced operations on May 30, 2003, with the initial acquisition of a 34.5% interest in the Partnership.
The acquisition of the Fund’s indirect interest in the Partnership has been accounted for based on the Fund’s cost
(see note 3).

The Partnership is involved in the business of gathering, processing, transporting, buying and selling petroleum,
natural gas, natural gas liquids and related products, electricity and thermal energy and other related businesses. 

The Partnership is managed by KeySpan Canada Management Ltd. (“KCML” or the “Managing Partner”).

The Fund makes monthly cash distributions to unitholders of record on the last business day of each month. The
amount of the distributions per trust unit are equal to the pro rata share of the distribution received from the
Partnership and, in the event of the termination of the Fund, participating pro rata in the net assets remaining after
satisfaction of all liabilities.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of consolidation
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Fund and all
controlled entities. Investments in companies in which the Fund does not have direct or joint control over the
strategic, investing, and financing decisions, but does have significant influence over them, are accounted for using
the equity method. 

Measurement uncertainty
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses. These include the recoverability of the investments, which depend on estimates of
future cash flows from related investments. The recognized amounts of such items are based on management’s best
information and judgment.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include short-term investments with maturity of three months or less when purchased.

Financial instruments
The carrying value of the Fund’s financial instruments including its current assets and current liabilities approximate
fair value due to their short-term nature.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
For period from inception on April 3 to December 31, 2003. (All amounts expressed in Canadian dollars, except where otherwise noted) 

Keyspan 2003 Pgs 1-60  4/20/04  8:57 PM  Page 27



KEYSPAN FACILITIES INCOME FUND

28 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investments
The Fund’s 39.1% interest in the Partnership is accounted for using the equity basis of accounting whereby the 
cost of the investment is increased or decreased for net earnings or losses and reduced by cash distributions paid to
the Fund.

The Fund has a 39.1% interest in KCML, the managing partner of the Partnership. This investment is accounted for
using the equity basis of accounting whereby the cost of the investment is increased or decreased for net earnings
or losses and reduced by cash distributions paid to the Fund.

The Fund reviews and evaluates the carrying value of its investments for impairment annually. More frequent reviews
are conducted as conditions necessitate. In the event a decrease in the value of a investment is other than a
temporary decline, the investment will be written down to recognize any impairment in the carrying value.

Revenue recognition
Revenues are primarily derived from equity earnings of the Partnership.

Income taxes
Under the terms of the Canadian Income Tax Act, the Fund, as a trust, will not be subject to income taxes to the
extent that its taxable income and taxable capital gains are paid or payable to unitholders. In addition, the Fund is
contractually committed to distribute to its unitholders all or virtually all of its taxable income and taxable capital
gains that would otherwise be taxable to it, and the Fund intends to continue not to be subject to income taxes.

Distributions to unitholders of the Fund
The amount of the distributions to unitholders (“Distributions to Unitholders”) of the Fund to be distributed monthly
is as defined in the Fund Declaration of Trust. The computation of the Distributions to Unitholders is comprised of
cash amounts received or receivable as distributions or interest income and any net proceeds from the issuance of
trust units, less any amounts that relate to the redemption of trust units and any expenses of the Fund.

The Fund makes distributions, in respect of each month, to the unitholders of record on the last day of such month.
Payments are made on or about the 15th day of the month after each record date.

Distributions to Unitholders, as defined above, is not a measure under Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles and there is no standardized measure of Distributions to Unitholders. Distributions to Unitholders, as
presented, may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other income trusts.

The Fund is dependent upon the operation of its subsidiaries for earnings. Accordingly, Distributions to Unitholders
from the Fund are not assured.

Net earnings and distributions per weighted average trust unit
Net earnings and distributions accruing to unitholders per trust unit are calculated by dividing net earnings and
distributions accruing to unitholders, respectively, by the weighted average number of trust units outstanding during
the period. For the purposes of the weighted average number of trust units calculation, trust units are determined
to be outstanding from the date they are issued.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 29

3. ACQUISITIONS

On May 30, 2003, the Fund issued 15,000,000 trust units as an initial public offering (the “Initial Offering”) at a
price of $10.00 per trust unit for net proceeds of $139,375,000 after transaction fees of $10,625,000.

Net proceeds received for the Initial Offering were used to purchase a 34.5% indirect interest in the Partnership for
consideration of $139,368,031. At the same time, the Fund acquired 34,490 shares of the KCML, the managing
partner of the Partnership, representing a 34.5% interest in KCML, for consideration of $6,969. KCML has a 0.005%
interest in the Partnership.

On June 10, 2003, under the over-allotment option, the Fund issued an additional 2,000,000 trust units at a price
of $10.00 per unit for net proceeds of $18,850,000 after transaction fees of $1,150,000. The proceeds were used
to purchase an additional 4.6% interest in Partnership for $18,849,080 and an additional 4,600 common shares of
KCML for $920.

At December 31, 2003 the equity investment in the Partnership was comprised of:
$

Acquisition cost 158,217,111
Equity earnings in the Partnership 8,571,841
Distributions to the Fund (10,805,308)

Investment in the Partnership 155,983,644

At December 31, 2003 the equity investment in KCML was comprised of:
$

Acquisition cost 7,889
Equity earnings in KCML 429

Investment in KCML 8,318

4. UNITHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The Fund Declaration of Trust provides that an unlimited number of trust units may be authorized and issued. Each
trust unit is transferable, and represents an equal undivided beneficial interest in any distribution from the Fund and
in the net assets of the Fund in the event of termination or winding-up of the Fund. All trust units are of the same
class with equal rights and privileges.

The Declaration of Trust also provides for the issuance of an unlimited number of special trust units that will be used
solely for providing voting rights to persons holding securities that are directly or indirectly exchangeable for units
and that, by their terms, have voting rights in the Fund.

The trust units are redeemable at the holder’s option at an amount equal to the lesser of: (i) 90% of the weighted
average price per unit at which the units during the period of the last 10 days during which the trust units were
traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange; and (ii) an amount equal to (a) the closing market price of the units; (b) an
amount equal to the average of the highest and lowest prices of units if there was trading on the date on which the
units were tendered for redemption; or (c) the average of the last bid and ask prices if there was no trading on the
date on which the units were tendered for redemption. Redemptions are subject to a maximum of $50,000 cash
redemptions in any particular month. Redemptions in excess of this amount will be paid by way of a distribution in
specie of assets of the Fund, which may include Commercial Trust (CT) Series 2 notes.
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Trust units issued and unitholders’ equity

Number of Units Amount $

Initial Offering, net of transaction fees of $11,775,000 17,000,000 158,225,000
Net earnings 1,355,219
Distributions declared (1,543,600)

As at June 30, 2003 17,000,000 158,036,619

Net earnings 3,179,486
Distributions declared (4,630,800)

As at September 30, 2003 17,000,000 156,585,305

Net earnings 4,037,465 
Distributions declared (4,630,800)

As at December 31, 2003 17,000,000 155,991,970

The weighted average number of trust units outstanding for the period from inception to June 30, and for the three
months ended September 30 and December 31, 2003 were 5,738,636, 11,494,444, and 13,356,618 respectively.

Transaction costs of $11,775,000 were incurred by the Fund in issuing trust units. These costs are deductible for
income tax purposes on a straight-line basis over a five-year period. Each unitholder will be required to include in
computing income for tax purposes for a particular taxation year their pro rata share of the Fund’s income that was
paid or payable in that year to the unitholder and that was deducted by the Fund in computing its income.

5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

KCML is a 39.1% owned subsidiary of the Fund and is the managing partner of the Partnership. KCML provides
management and administrative services to the Fund and the Partnership on a cost recovery basis. KeySpan Energy
Development Co. (“KEDCO”) owns the remaining 60.9% interest in KCML. 

As at December 31, 2003, the Fund had the following balances receivable from related parties in the normal course
of business:

Distributions receivable from the Partnership $  1,543,693

6. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE 

For the purposes of declaring distributions, the Fund is entirely dependent on cash distributions received from the
Partnership.
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7. RECONCILIATION OF DISTRIBUTIONS ACCRUING TO UNITHOLDERS

From April 3
to December 31,

2003

Net earnings 8,572,170
Add:

Distributions receivable and due from the Partnership 10,805,200
Less:

Equity earnings from the Partnership and the Managing Partner (8,572,270)

Distributions accruing to unitholders during the period 10,805,100

Number of trust units outstanding at the end of the period 17,000,000
Distributions accruing to unitholders per trust unit outstanding 

at the end of the period 0.6356

Weighted average number of trust units outstanding 13,356,618
Distributions accruing to unitholders per weighted average trust unit 0.8090

8. INCOME TAX 

The Fund is a unit trust for income tax purposes. As such, the Fund is only taxable on any taxable income not
allocated to the unitholders. During 2003, the Fund has allocated all of its taxable income to the unitholders, and
accordingly, no provision for income tax is required at the Fund level. The subsidiaries of the Fund are subject to
corporate income taxes and follow the liability method of accounting for income taxes. 
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Management’s discussion and analysis is a review of the results of operations and the liquidity and capital resources of KeySpan Energy Canada Partnership

(“KeySpan”). It should be read in conjunction with the financial statements of KeySpan and the notes thereto.

KeySpan Energy Canada Partnership

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended December 31, 2003 compared to Year Ended December 31, 2002

Net income earned for the year 2003 was $40.4 million, up $8.3 million or 26% from last year, due to the acquisition of KEFL by KeySpan

and stronger results in both the marketing and facilities business segments.

Operating Margin
Facilities activities represent approximately 66% of Operating Margin for 2003. This proportion is less than in previous years due to the

strong performance of the NGL marketing business during the year.

Operating Margin1 Twelve months ended December 31 ($ in millions) 2003 2002

Facilities 49.7 43.0
Marketing 24.4 19.6
Corporate 1.0 0.6

75.1 63.2

1 Operating margin refers to operating revenues less operating expenses (marketing cost of goods sold, 

plant processing and gathering expenses and pipeline expenses). 

Facilities
Operating Margin generated from gathering, processing and pipeline activities is not significantly exposed to changes in operating costs

as much of the revenue stream is generated on a cost-of-service basis. This fee arrangement provides a mechanism for the recovery of

operating costs plus a return on capital.

The $49.7 million of Operating Margin generated from facilities was $6.7 million higher than last year due partly to the inclusion of

KEFL’s results. Excluding the effect of KEFL’s results, Operating Margin from facilities increased by $3.7 million over last year, due

primarily to higher acid gas injection fees at Brazeau River, lower payments on the electrical hedge contracts and favourable equalization

adjustments, partially offset by lower volumes at the Strachan plant and higher operating costs at the fractionation facilities.

In order to fix the price of electricity consumed at its plants and facilities until December 31, 2003, KeySpan entered into financial price

swap contracts to purchase electricity at an average price of $88.06 per Megawatt hour. KEDCO assumed responsibility for all payments

by and to KeySpan under these hedging agreements as of May 30, 2003. During the year, KeySpan paid $1.7 million pursuant to these

contracts compared to $3.1 million in the previous year. As a result, distributions from KeySpan to KEDCO were reduced by $1.3 million

for the period May 30, 2003 to December 31, 2003. These agreements expired on December 31, 2003.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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Marketing
The marketing business engages in the purchase and sale of natural gas and NGLs and provides marketing services to its customers on

a fee for service basis. KeySpan acquires products through processing arrangements and plant gate purchases. The composition of the

revenues generated from KeySpan’s marketing business is shown in the table below.

Composition of Marketing Revenue ($000)

Fees for service 4,900
Physical Sales 633,193
Financial Instruments (3,580)

KeySpan enters into contracts to purchase and sell natural gas and NGLs. These contracts are exposed to commodity price risk between

the time contracted volumes are purchased and the time they are sold. KeySpan actively manages this risk by using financial contracts,

such as energy-related futures, forward sales, price swaps, physical exchanges and options and by balancing physical and financial

contracts in terms of volumes, timing of performance and delivery obligations. Occasionally, open positions have been established to

take advantage of market conditions.

The table below outlines the changes in the fair value of the financial contracts entered into by KeySpan:

Changes in Fair Value of Energy Derivative Contracts1 ($000)

Fair Value at December 31, 2002 (1,129)

Change in the Fair Value of Contracts held at December 2002 (2,451)
Fair Value of new contracts entered into in 2003 1,305
Less realized gains or add realized (losses) (3,580)

Fair Value at December 31, 2003 1,305

1 The fair value of the financial contracts represents an estimate of the amount that KeySpan 

would pay or receive if those contracts were closed on December 31, 2003.

Financial contract maturities vary from a single day up to two years. A large number of financial contracts mature in less than one year.

The relatively short maturity position of KeySpan’s financial contracts lowers its portfolio risk.

The marketing Operating Margin of $24.4 million for 2003 was $4.8 million higher than 2002, primarily due to strong North American

demand for propane in the first quarter, which resulted in higher sales and margins. NGL sales volumes for 2003 were approximately

36,500 bbls/d and for 2002 were approximately 35,200 bbls/d.

The marketing results for the year also contained $3.3 million of termination payments related to the termination of the gas 

marketing services contract with ConocoPhillips. As of May 30, 2003, KEDCO was allocated all remaining termination payments 

which expired on November 30, 2003. As a result, distributions to KEDCO were increased $1.5 million for the period from May 30, 2003

to December 31, 2003.
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Non-Operating Expenses
Non-operating expenses of $35.1 million increased $4.0 million over the previous year.

Depreciation and amortization expense of $21.6 million increased $3.0 million compared to the previous year due to the acquisition of

an interest in the Paddle River plant from KEDCO in late 2002 and the inclusion of the assets of KEFL in 2003.

General and administrative expenses of $10.5 million were down $0.9 million due to lower incentive compensation costs and greater

overhead recoveries, partially offset by the inclusion of administrative expenses relating to KEFL.

Interest expense was $3.6 million, an increase of $3.8 million compared to the $0.2 million of interest revenue in the previous year.

Approximately $2.5 million of the interest expense was related to the long term senior secured notes issued by KeySpan in August 2003.

The remainder of the interest expense was due to short-term borrowings used to bridge the placement of the senior secured notes and to

finance working capital and capital expenditures. In 2002 KeySpan did not have any debt obligations.

Critical Accounting Estimates
In the preparation of KeySpan’s consolidated financial statements, management has made estimates that affect the recorded amounts of

certain of KeySpan’s assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. The most significant estimates are those described below:

Estimation of Facility Revenues

For each month, actual volumes processed and fees earned from the gathering and processing assets are not known at the month end.

Accordingly, the financial statements contain an estimate of one month’s revenue based upon a review of historic trends. This estimate

is adjusted for events that are known to have a significant effect on the month’s operations, such as the shut down of a plant for

maintenance or the tie in of incremental production.

At December 31, 2003 for the facilities segment, gathering, processing and pipelines, operating revenues and accounts receivable 

contain an estimate of December 2003 revenues of $6.6 million. There are no known trends, events or uncertainties to indicate that

actual results will vary significantly from the estimates used nor would any expected variance have a material effect on the financial

condition of KeySpan.

Estimation of Facility Operating Expenses

The period in which invoices are rendered for the supply of goods and services necessary for the operation of the gathering and

processing assets is generally later than the period in which the goods or services were provided. Accordingly, the financial statements

contain an estimate of one month’s operating costs based upon a review of historic trends. This estimate is adjusted for events that are

known to have a significant effect on the month’s operations, such as the shut down of a plant for maintenance or the tie in of

incremental production.

At December 31, 2003, for the facilities segment, gathering, processing and pipelines, operating expenses and accounts payable 

contain an estimate of December 2003 expenses of $1.9 million. There are no known trends, events or uncertainties to indicate that

actual results will vary significantly from the estimates used nor would any expected variance have a material effect on the financial

condition of KeySpan.
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Estimation of Facility Equalization Adjustments

Much of the revenue generated from the gathering, processing and pipeline assets is generated on a cost of service basis. Under this

method, the operating component of the fee is a pro rata share of the operating costs for the facility, calculated based upon total

throughput. Users of the facility are charged a fee per unit based upon estimated costs and throughput, with an adjustment to actual

completed at the end of each year. Each quarter, throughput volumes and operating costs are reviewed to determine whether the

estimated unit fee charged during the quarter properly reflects the actual volumes and costs. As well, the allocation of revenues and

operating costs to other plant owners is also reviewed. Appropriate adjustments to the revenue recognized in the quarter and allocations

to other owners are recorded.

At December 31, 2003, for the facilities segment, gathering, processing and pipelines, operating revenues and accounts receivable contain

an adjustment to revenues of $2.2 million. There are no known trends, events or uncertainties to indicate that actual results will vary

significantly from the estimates used nor would any expected variance have a material effect on the financial condition of KeySpan.

Estimation of NGL Marketing Revenues

The majority of NGL marketing sales revenues are recorded based upon actual volumes and prices, however, in many cases actual

product lifting volumes have not yet been confirmed or sales prices that are dependent on other variables are not yet known. Accordingly,

the financial statements contain an estimate for these sales. Estimates are prepared based upon contract quantities and known events.

The estimates are reviewed and compared to expected results to verify their accuracy. They are reversed in the following month and

replaced with actual results.

At December 31, 2003, NGL marketing sales and accounts receivable contain an estimate of December 2003 revenues of $17.3 million.

There are no known trends, events or uncertainties to indicate that actual results will vary significantly from the estimates used nor

would any expected variance have a material effect on the financial condition of KeySpan.

Estimation of NGL Product Purchases

NGL mix (feedstock) and specification products such as propane, butane or condensate are purchased from facilities located throughout

Western Canada and in some locations of the United States. The majority of NGL mix purchases are estimated each month as actual

volume information is generally not available until the next month. The estimates are prepared based upon a three month rolling average

of production volumes for each facility and an estimate of price based upon historic information. Specification product volumes and

prices are based upon contract volumes and prices. Accordingly, these financial statements contain an estimate for one month of these

purchases.

At December 31, 2003, NGL marketing cost of goods sold and accounts payable contain an estimate of December 2003 costs of

$34.4 million. There are no known trends, events or uncertainties to indicate that actual results will vary significantly from the estimates

used nor would any expected variance have a material effect on the financial condition of KeySpan.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from non-performance of contractual obligations by a customer or counterparty. The majority 

of KeySpan’s accounts receivable are due from entities in the oil and gas industry and are subject to normal industry credit risks.

Concentration of credit risk is mitigated by having a broad domestic and international customer base. KeySpan evaluates and monitors

the financial strength of its customers in accordance with its credit policy.

Management believes these measures minimize KeySpan’s overall credit risk; however, there can be no assurance that these processes will

protect against all losses from non-performance. At December 31, 2003, the accounts receivable from KeySpan’s two largest customers

accounted for approximately 7% of accounts receivable and 11% in 2002. With respect to counterparties for financial instruments used

for hedging purposes, KeySpan limits its credit risk through dealing with recognized futures exchanges or investment grade financial

institutions and by maintaining credit policies which significantly minimize overall counterparty credit risk.

Commitments
KeySpan has assumed various contractual obligations in the normal course of its operations. At December 31, 2003, the obligations that

represent known future cash payments that are required under existing contractual arrangements are as follows:

Payments Due By Period

Less than After
Contractual Obligations ($000) Total 1 Year 1 - 3 Years 4 - 5 Years 5 Years

Long Term Debt 125,000 – – 20,000 105,000
Capital Lease Obligations – – – – –
Operating Leases1 17,198 5,173 4,106 2,550 5,369
Purchase Obligations 2 – – – – –

Total Contractual Obligations 142,198 5,173 4,106 22,550 110,369

1 KeySpan has lease commitments relating to railway tank cars, vehicles, computer hardware, office space and natural gas transportation agreements. 

2 KeySpan is involved in various contractual agreements with ConocoPhillips and other producers (“Suppliers”) to purchase NGLs. These agreements 

range from one to fifteen years and in general obligate KeySpan to purchase all product produced at specified locations on a best efforts basis by 

each of the Suppliers. The purchase prices are based on then current period market prices. The future volumes and prices for these contracts cannot 

be reasonably determined. 
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Risk Management
In addition to operating natural gas processing plants and pipelines, KeySpan engages in the wholesale marketing of NGLs. As an

operator of processing facilities, KeySpan has an opportunity to purchase NGLs at the plants thereby creating a long position of physical

product. KeySpan is a market maker in the Alberta NGL market, posting bid prices for physical term purchase arrangements at the

Edmonton/Fort Saskatchewan hub.

The focus of the risk management program is to protect KeySpan’s physically long position of NGLs from changes in commodity prices

and to lock in margins. In order to do this, KeySpan utilizes financial contracts such as energy-related futures, forward sales, price swaps,

physical exchanges and options, and generally balances physical and financial contracts in terms of volume, timing of performance and

delivery obligations. Occasionally, open positions, primarily attributable to unsold physical inventory, are established to take advantage

of market conditions. Positions are regularly monitored and managed by the following processes.

Reporting systems capture and report NGL physical and financial transactions and mark them to market. Sensitivity analyses are

conducted on the NGL book to estimate the impact of changes in forward prices. The creditworthiness of each new customer is evaluated

and reviewed periodically. Accounts receivable are monitored for collection. On a monthly basis, or more frequently if required, the risk

management committee reviews the positions and discusses recent issues related to the market.

Transactions are undertaken in accordance with the terms of an “authority grid” which has been approved by the Board of Directors.

The grid documents trading authorities volumetrically and by dollar amount.

In the natural gas markets, KeySpan primarily provides marketing services for small and intermediate producers behind its plants.

This business is being wound up as contracts and transportation commitments expire. The majority of natural gas purchase contracts

remaining have been structured to transfer commodity price and operating risk to the producers from whom KeySpan purchases 

the natural gas. Purchases are matched to sales. In some instances financial contracts have been matched to physical contracts to lock 

in prices.

The control processes for transaction authorization and credit evaluation are described above. Because the portfolio does not change

significantly from month to month, rigorous mark to market analysis is not regularly conducted.

Foreign Currency Rate Risk
The gathering and processing business generated 66% of 2003 operating margin and is not subject to foreign currency rate risk. All sales

and virtually all purchases are denominated in Canadian Dollars. In the NGL marketing business approximately $104.4 million of

2003 sales were priced in U.S. Dollars. Each change in the currency exchange rate of 1% could therefore increase or decrease earnings by

$1 million.
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Liquidity and Working Capital
Cash provided by operating activities was $92.3 million compared to the use of $4.0 million last year. These changes resulted from the

increase in earnings and the receipt of funds due from related parties (KEDCO). Working capital at December 31, 2003 was $34.5

million, down from $88.3 million at December 31, 2002 due primarily to the distributions paid to KEDCO in May 2003. Included in

working capital at December 31, 2003 was $23.5 million of borrowings from short-term bank credit facilities. Cash and short-term

borrowings were used to fund the increase in NGL inventory and capital spending.

Twelve months ended December 31 ($ in millions) 2003 2002

Capital Spending 19.9 11.9

In 2003 additions to property, plant and equipment amounted to $19.9 million and consisted of $9.6 million of maintenance capital,

$9.2 million of growth capital and $1.1 million of leasehold improvements. The maintenance capital expenditures were primarily related

to turnarounds at the Rimbey, Brazeau River and Bigoray plants, upgrading of the Rimbey plant flare system and improvements to

control systems at various locations. Growth capital expenditures were primarily related to the construction of the CO2 liquification

plant at Rimbey and an NGL storage cavern at Dow Fort Saskatchewan, the acquisition of an interest in the Dow Fort Saskatchewan

facility, the acquisition of additional shares in the Rimbey Pipe Line Co. Ltd. and a number of other small projects.

Working capital requirements are strongly influenced by the volume of natural gas products held in storage and their related commodity

prices. NGL inventories are required to meet seasonal demand patterns. Historically, the largest value of funds allocated to financing

inventory has been approximately $39 million. In addition to the working capital required for inventory, KeySpan requires approximately

$20 million to finance the other components of working capital.

The majority of cashflow is derived from the gathering and processing business segment where the long term fundamentals are viewed

as positive by management. Also, the operating income generated from gathering, processing and pipeline activities is not significantly

exposed to changes in operating costs. This fee arrangement provides a mechanism for the recovery of operating costs plus a return on

capital.

The most significant exposure faced by the gathering and processing business is related to declines in production volumes. With

KeySpan’s facilities located in significant natural gas supply areas of the WCSB and the high barriers to entry of new participants, the

cashflow is anticipated to remain stable and be sufficient to support operations, fund sustaining capital expenditures and generate

distributable cash.

KeySpan’s future debt levels are primarily dependent on operating cash flows, working capital requirements and capital investment

programs. Management expects KeySpan’s 2004 sustaining capital expenditures and distributions to be funded by cash flow from

operations.

In order for KeySpan to manage seasonal fluctuations in cash flow and working capital, stabilize distributions and fund growth capital

expenditures, KeySpan has established credit facilities consisting of a $50 million revolving term facility that can be extended to May 27,

2005 and a $50 million revolving term facility that matures on May 30, 2005. As at December 31, 2003, $23.5 million had been drawn

under the credit facilities.
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On August 26, 2003 KeySpan and KEFL issued $125 million of long term senior secured notes, through a private placement to investors

in the United States and Canada. The proceeds were used to repay short term debt. Of the total amount, $20 million has a five year term,

$52.5 million has a seven year term and $52.5 million has a ten year term. The weighted average interest rate is approximately 5.9%,

payable monthly.

As of December 31, 2003, the board of directors of the Managing Partner approved a change to KeySpan’s partners’ equity by eliminating

the comprehensive revaluation amount of $98.4 million. This adjustment does not affect total partners’ equity nor does it affect the

economic interest of the partners and was made for financial statement presentation purposes only. The revaluation amount was related

to a reorganization that occurred on September 1, 2000 when KeySpan’s assets and liabilities were comprehensively revalued to reflect

the cost of the partners’ investment at that time.

Distributable Cash Flow
KeySpan pays distributions to its partners on a monthly basis from its distributable cash, as determined in accordance with the

Partnership Agreement. KeySpan’s distributable cash for each month will generally be all of its cash flow from operations for such

month, including dividends received from subsidiaries, after satisfaction of its debt service obligations (principal and interest),

reclamation expenditures, maintenance capital expenditures, other expense obligations and reasonable reserves for working capital and

capital expenditures as may be considered appropriate by the board of directors of the Managing Partner.

For the period May 30, 2003 to December 31, 2003, KeySpan declared $27.9 million of distributions to partners of which $10.8 million

was due to the Fund. Cash available for distribution during this period amounted to $26.3 million. The shortfall in cash available for

distribution compared to distributions paid was due primarily to the greater than expected maintenance capital expenditures.

Selected Financial Information
The Fund was not a public entity until May 30, 2003. Neither the Fund nor KeySpan prepared quarterly statements prior to becoming 

a reporting issuer. The following table presents selected financial information for KeySpan.

March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
Three month period ended ($000) 2003 2003 2003 2003 Annual

Operating Revenues
Facilities – gathering, 

processing and pipelines $ 23,212 $ 24,391 $ 24,676 $ 24,956 $ 97,235
Marketing Sales 228,374 138,275 123,734 147,710 638,093
Other revenues – 164 365 531 1,060

Total operating revenues 251,586 162,830 148,775 173,197 736,388

Net Income 12,716 9,460 8,276 9,986 40,438
Total Assets 778,597 732,119 759,221 755,857 755,857
Long Term Liabilities 5,943 6,077 131,081 131,303 131,303
Cash Distributions $ – $ 168,417 $ 12,179 $ 11,702 $ 192,298
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December 31, 2003 compared to September 30, 2003
For the fourth quarter of 2003 marketing revenues of $147.7 million were up $24.0 due to higher NGL sales volumes and prices.

Net income for the fourth quarter of 2003 was $10.0 million, up $1.7 million from the previous quarter, due primarily to the stronger

performance from the NGL marketing business.

Distributions for the fourth quarter of 2003 were $11.7 million, down $0.5 million from the previous quarter, as distributions to KEDCO

were reduced as a result of the expiry of the gas marketing contract termination payments on November 30, 2003.

September 30, 2003 compared to June 30, 2003
For the third quarter of 2003 marketing revenues of $123.7 million were down $14.6 million from the previous quarter due primarily

to the expiry and winding up of natural gas sales contracts.

Net income for the third quarter was $8.3 million, down $1.2 million from the previous quarter, due primarily to higher interest costs

related to the issuance of long term debt.

Total assets at September 30, 2003 were $759.2 million, up $27.1 million from June 30, 2003 due to higher NGL inventories and accounts

receivable.

Long term liabilities of $131.1 million are up $125 million compared to June 30, 2003 due to the issuance of $125 million of senior

secured notes on August 26, 2003 and $6.1 million for future site restoration.

Distributions for the third quarter of 2003 were $12.2 million down $156.2 million from the previous quarter which included the

dividends related to the restructuring of KeySpan prior to its acquisition by the Fund.

June 30, 2003 compared to March 31, 2003
For the second quarter of 2003, operating revenues from facilities were $24.4 million, up $1.2 million from the previous quarter. The

acquisition of KEFL by KeySpan and take or pay revenues earned at the Paddle River plant offset the lower volumes at the Brazeau plant

due to the turnaround at that plant.

For the second quarter of 2003 marketing revenues of $138.3 million were down $90.1 million from the previous quarter due to lower

NGL volumes and prices and the winding-up of the natural gas marketing business.

Net income for the second quarter of 2003 was $9.5 million, down $3.2 million from the previous quarter, due primarily to the strong

performance of the NGL marketing business in the first quarter where strong per unit margins were earned due to lower than average

North American inventory levels.

Total assets at June 30, 2003 were $732 million, down $46.5 million from March 31, 2003 due to lower receivables generated from the

marketing business and distributions to partners partially offset by the acquisition of KEFL.

Distributions for the second quarter of 2003 were $168.4 million due primarily to the distributions paid to KEDCO prior to the Fund’s

acquisition of an indirect interest in KeySpan.
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New Accounting Pronouncements
In December 2001, the CICA issued Accounting Guideline 13, “Hedging Relationships” (“AcG-13”). AcG-13 establishes certain

conditions for when hedge accounting may be applied. The guideline is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after July 1, 2003. The

effect of the adoption of AcG-13 on KeySpan’s financial statements has not yet been determined.

In December 2002, the CICA approved Section 3110, “Asset Retirement Obligations” (“S.3110”). S.3110 requires liability recognition for

retirement obligations associated with property, plant and equipment. These obligations are initially measured at fair value, which is the

discounted future value of the liability. This fair value is capitalized as part of the cost of the related asset and amortized to expense over

its useful life. The liability accretes until it is expected to settle the retirement obligation. S.3110 is effective for fiscal years beginning on

or after January 1, 2004. Adoption of this section is not expected to have a material effect on KeySpan’s financial position or results of

operations.

In July 2003, the CICA approved Section 1100, “General Accounting Principles” effective for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1,

2004. As a result, KeySpan will begin expensing significant maintenance turnaround costs commencing January 1, 2004. For the year ended

December 31, 2003 these costs were capitalized and depreciated over the estimated period until the next scheduled significant maintenance

turnaround. This change in accounting policy will be applied retroactively and will result in a decrease in net property, plant and equipment

of approximately $2.6 million and a decrease in unitholders’ equity of approximately $2.6 million on January 1, 2004. The impact of this

new accounting pronouncement on the consolidated statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2003, had it been adopted on

January 1, 2003, would be a reduction in net income of approximately $2.6 million. There would have been no change to cash available for

distribution in the year as the reduction in net income of approximately $2.6 million, and the reduction of depreciation and amortization

of approximately $1.3 million is offset by the decrease in maintenance capital of $3.9 million.

Keyspan 2003 Pgs 1-60  4/20/04  8:57 PM  Page 41



KEYSPAN ENERGY CANADA PARTNERSHIP

42 AUDITORS’  REPORT

Auditors’ Report

To the Partners of KeySpan Energy Canada Partnership

We have audited the consolidated statements of financial position of KeySpan Energy Canada

Partnership as at December 31, 2003 and 2002 and the consolidated statements of income and

partners’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the

responsibility of the management of KeySpan Energy Canada Partnership. Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those

standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the

financial position of KeySpan Energy Canada Partnership as at December 31, 2003 and 2002 and the

consolidated statements of income and partner’s equity and its cash flows for the years then ended in

accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants
Calgary, Canada

February 25, 2004
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
(All amounts expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars)

2003 2002
As at December 31 $ $

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6,367 4,760
Margin deposit – 229
Accounts receivable 120,472 135,821
Inventory 27,458 19,034
Prepaid expenses 3,043 642
Due from related parties (note 10) 953 40,470

158,293 200,956
Property, plant and equipment (note 4) 559,083 529,838
Other assets (note 4) 13,716 13,728
Long-term investments (note 5) 13,095 1,218
Intangible assets 6,609 7,276
Deferred costs (note 7) 1,161 –
Future tax asset (note 9) 3,900 –

755,857 753,016

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 94,650 106,865
Distribution payable 3,689 –
Deposits payable 1,465 1,445
Due to related parties (note 10) 457 4,362
Current portion of debt (note 7) 23,500 –

123,761 112,672
Long-term debt (note 7) 125,000 –
Future site restoration (note 8) 6,303 5,870

255,064 118,542

Commitments and contingencies (note 13)

Partners’ equity

Comprehensive revaluation (note 11) – (98,433)
Related party transaction adjustment (note 11) 15,069 4,196
Partners’ equity 485,724 728,711

500,793 634,474

755,857 753,016

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

Approved on behalf of the Partnership by its managing partner, KeySpan Canada Management Ltd.

Wesley R. Twiss Jim V. Bertram
Director Director
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Consolidated Statements of Income and Partners’ Equity
(All amounts expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars)

2003 2002
For the years ended December 31 $ $

Operating revenues

Marketing sales 633,193 558,268
Facilities – gathering, processing and pipelines 97,235 83,076
Marketing service fees 4,900 4,947
Other revenue 1,060 580

736,388 646,871
Operating expenses 

Marketing cost of goods sold 613,693 543,623
Facilities – gathering, processing and pipelines 47,549 40,023

661,242 583,646

75,146 63,225

Depreciation and amortization 21,563 18,600
General and administrative 10,465 11,370
Site restoration and abandonment (note 8) 584 465
Interest expense (income) 3,578 (173)
Equity (earnings) loss from investments (note 5) (1,086) 806

35,104 31,068

Income before tax 40,042 32,157
Income tax (recovery) (note 9) (396) –

Net income 40,438 32,157

Partners’ equity, beginning of year 728,711 667,984
Partners’ capital contribution (notes 2 and 11) 7,306 28,570
Partners’ distributions (notes 2 and 3) (192,298) –
Reduction of comprehensive revaluation (note 11) (98,433) –

Partners’ equity, end of year 485,724 728,711

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(All amounts expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars)

2003 2002
For the years ended December 31 $ $

Operating Activities
Net income 40,438 32,157
Items not requiring cash:

Depreciation and amortization 21,617 18,600
Site restoration and abandonment 584 465
Equity (earnings) loss from investments (1,086) 806
Future income tax (recovery) expense (520) –
Loss on sale of asset 6 –
Gain on sale of long-term investment (241) –
Foreign exchange loss – 517

60,798 52,545
Changes in non-cash working capital (note 15) 31,478 (56,533)
Cash provided by (used in) operating activities 92,276 (3,988)

Investing Activities
Additions to property, plant and equipment (note 4) (19,927) (11,867)
Proceeds on sale of asset 748 –
Site restoration expenditures (304) (137)
Investment in Rimbey Pipe Line Co. Ltd. (note 5) (2,021) –
Dividends received from long-term investment (note 5) 2,038 –
Proceeds on sale of long-term investment (note 5) 1,460 –
Increase in other assets – (1,361)

Cash used in investing activities (18,006) (13,365)

Financing Activities
Issuance of debt (note 7) 148,500 –
Repayment of promissory notes (note 2) (31,442) –
Increase in deferred costs (note 7) (1,215) –
Distributions paid (188,609) –
Changes in non-cash working capital (note 15) 103 (6,294)

Cash provided by (used in) financing activities (72,663) (6,294)

Increase (decrease) in cash 1,607 (23,647)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 4,760 28,407

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 6,367 4,760

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Interest paid 3,487 –
Cash taxes paid 78 –

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of KeySpan Energy Canada Partnership (the
“Partnership” or “KeySpan”) and its subsidiaries, KeySpan Energy Facilities Limited (“KEFL”) and KeySpan Energy
Canada Company (“KECC”, formerly KeySpan Energy Canada Inc.). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. The purpose of the Partnership is
to own, operate, and manage midstream facilities, to process natural gas liquids (“NGLs”) and to market natural gas
and NGLs. 

Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Partnership and its subsidiaries, and are presented
in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. Investments in companies in which the
Partnership does not have direct or joint control over the strategic, investing, and financing decisions, but does have
significant influence over them, are accounted for using the equity method. 

Joint ventures
Substantially all natural gas and NGL processing activities are conducted jointly with others, and accordingly these
financial statements reflect only the Partnership’s proportionate interest in such activities.

Measurement uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses. These include the recoverability of assets and the amounts recorded for depreciation,
amortization, and future site restoration costs, which depend on estimates of oil and gas reserves or the economic
lives and future cash flows from related assets. The recognized amounts of such items are based on management’s
best information and judgment. 

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include short-term investments with maturity of three months or less when purchased.

Investments
Investments in companies over which the Partnership has significant influence are accounted for using the equity
method. Other long-term investments are accounted for using the cost method. Impairment is recognized when
there has been a permanent decline in value of the investment.

Inventory
Inventory is comprised primarily of NGL product for sale through the marketing operations. Inventory is valued at
the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on a weighted average cost basis, calculated monthly.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets consist of the marketing business contributed by the partners when the Partnership was first formed
and have been recorded at fair market value as at the time of contribution. The amount is being amortized over its
estimated economic life of 15 years. The unamortized balance of these costs is assessed periodically for impairment
based on management’s best estimates of future net revenues from marketing operations.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
For years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 (All amounts expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, except where otherwise noted)
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Property, plant and equipment 
Property, plant and equipment consist of natural gas and NGL processing facilities and gathering systems, which were
recorded at cost, but have been adjusted pursuant to a comprehensive revaluation of assets as described in Note 11.
Depreciation of these facilities is provided for on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of each facility,
the periods of which range from 20 to 40 years. Significant maintenance turnaround costs on these facilities are
capitalized and depreciated over the estimated period until the next scheduled significant maintenance turnaround,
which ranges from two to four years. Impairment on property, plant and equipment are measured as the amount by
which the carrying value of an asset or asset group exceeds its fair value, as determined by the discounted future
cash flows of the asset or asset group. 

Revenue recognition
Marketing revenue
Revenue from the sale of natural gas and natural gas liquids is recognized based on volumes delivered to customers
at contractual delivery points and rates. Gains and losses relating to financial instruments that are used to manage
commodity price fluctuations are recognized on the settlement date.

Processing, gathering and pipeline revenue
Processing, gathering and pipeline revenue is recognized through fixed fee arrangements or flow through
arrangements that are designed to recover operating costs and provide the Partnership a return on its capital.
Amounts collected in excess of the recoverable amounts are recorded as a current liability. Recoverable amounts in
excess of the amounts collected are recorded as a current receivable. 

Future site restoration 
Future obligations for site restoration costs are provided for over the estimated remaining useful lives of the related
assets. These obligations include the estimated future dismantlement of plants and facilities and the cost of
reclamation of related properties required to comply with current legislation and industry practices. Expenditures are
charged against the provision as incurred.

Amortization of deferred costs
Amortization of deferred costs is provided for on a straight-line basis of the weighted average term of the related
debt facility. 

Foreign currency translation
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates in effect at the
balance sheet date. Revenues and expenses are translated at rates of exchange in effect at the transaction date.
Exchange gains and losses are recorded in income in the period they are incurred.

Income taxes 
The Partnership follows the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, the Partnership
records future income tax basis of an asset or liability, using the substantially enacted income tax rates. Accumulated
future income tax balances are adjusted to reflect the change in the income tax rates in the adjustment being
recognized in earnings in the period that the change occurs. 

Financial instruments
The Partnership uses financial instruments to manage fluctuations in commodity prices and foreign currency
exchange rates, as described in Note 14. Hedge accounting is used when there is a high degree of correlation
between price movements in the derivative instrument and the item designated as being hedged. The Partnership
recognizes gains and losses in the same period as the hedged item.
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Impairment of long-lived assets
The Partnership adopted the recommendation of CICA Handbook section 3063, “Impairment of Long-Lived Assets”
on a prospective basis effective January 1, 2003. The most significant change under the new recommendations is to
require that impairment losses on long-lived assets or asset groups be measured as the amount by which the carrying
value of the assets or asset groups exceeds their fair value. Previously, Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles required that an asset impairment loss be measured as the undiscounted future cash flows from the use of
the asset groups. The new recommendations conform Canadian GAAP as it applies to impairment of long-lived
assets with U.S. GAAP. For 2003, implementation of this recommendation did not have an effect on our results of
operations and financial position.

Stock-based compensation 
Effective January 1, 2003, the Partnership adopted the recommendation of CICA Handbook section 3870, “Stock-
based compensation and other stock-based payments”, prospectively. The Partnership has a Long-term Incentive
Plan (“LTIP”), which is disclosed in Note 12. The LTIP is a stock appreciation right as defined by the CICA. The
difference between the market price of the trust units and the grant price for the outstanding units multiplied by the
number of rights is recognized as compensation expense, over the vesting period. Fluctuations in the price of the
trust units will change the accrued compensation expense and are recognized prospectively when they occur. 

Comparative figures
Certain amounts in the 2002 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current year financial
statement presentation. 

2. REORGANIZATION

On May 30, 2003 (the “Closing”), the ownership of KeySpan Energy Canada Partnership was restructured in
accordance with the terms of an Initial Public Offering (“the Initial Public Offering”) of KeySpan Facilities Income
Fund (the “Fund”).

The Fund is an unincorporated open-ended trust established under the laws of the Province of Alberta that was
created to acquire an indirect interest in the Partnership from KeySpan Energy Development Co. (“KEDCO”). On
Closing, the Fund acquired approximately a 34.5% interest in the Partnership for cash consideration of $139,368. On
June 10, 2003, an additional 4.6% interest was acquired for cash consideration of $18,849. As at December 31, 2003,
KEDCO and the Fund have an interest of approximately 60.9% (2002 – 100%) and 39.1% (2002 – nil), respectively.

On May 29, 2003, before the Closing, the following transactions were completed:

(a) The Partnership acquired 100% of the outstanding common shares of KEFL, a wholly owned subsidiary of
KEDCO, in exchange for a $7,287 capital contribution in the Partnership. The transaction has been recorded in
these financial statements at the carrying amount of KEFL’s assets and liabilities as shown on the following table.
The difference between the capital contribution and the carrying values, of $8,068, has been credited to related
party transaction adjustment. The results of KEFL’s operations have been included in the consolidated financial
statements since that date. KEFL provides gas processing and fractionation services and held a 40.606%
beneficial interest in Rimbey Pipe Line Co. Ltd. 

The carrying values of KEFL’s assets and liabilities as at May 29, 2003 were:
$

Current assets 8,355
Investment in Rimbey Pipe Line Co. Ltd. 12,027
Property, plant and equipment 30,967
Future income taxes 580
Current liabilities (4,979)
Notes payable (31,442)
Future site restoration provision (153)

15,355
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(b) The Partnership also acquired 100% of the outstanding common shares of KECC, a wholly owned subsidiary of
KEDCO, in exchange for a $20 capital contribution in the Partnership. The transaction has been recorded in
these financial statements at the carrying value of KECC’s assets and liabilities. The difference between the
capital contribution and the carrying value has been charged to related party transaction adjustment.

(c) The Partnership distributed $164,407 to KEDCO and its subsidiaries.

3. DISTRIBUTABLE CASH FLOW

The amount of distributable cash flow, as defined in the Partnership Agreement, will generally be, on a monthly
basis, the Partnership’s cash flow from operations for such month (including dividends received from subsidiaries),
after (i) satisfaction of its debt service obligations (principal and interest) and income tax and large corporations tax
expenses; (ii) satisfaction of funding requirements in respect of any reclamation fund; (iii) providing for maintenance
capital expenditures; (iv) satisfaction of its other expense obligations including general and administrative expenses
and those relating to incentive compensation; and (v) retaining reasonable reserves for administrative and other
expense obligations and reasonable reserves for working capital and capital expenditures as may be considered
appropriate by the Board of Directors of the Managing Partner. KEDCO’s share of Distributable Cash Flow shall also
include 100% of the net receipts (or payments) for contracts entered into regarding termination of certain natural
gas services and an electricity hedge.

Distributable Cash Flow, as defined above, is not a measure under Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
and there is no standardized measure of distributable cash flow. Distributable Cash Flow, as presented, may not be
comparable to similar measures presented by other entities.

The Partnership makes monthly distributions to holders of record on the last day of each month. Payments are made
on or about the 15th day of the following month.

The following table calculates the distributable cash flow under the terms of the Partnership Agreement for 2003:

Period from May 30 to
December 31, 2003

$

Net income 21,746
Add (deduct):

Depreciation and amortization 13,214
Site restoration provision 380
Equity earnings from investment (1,086)
Dividends received from investment 2,038
Future income tax (recovery) expense (520)
Loss on sale of asset 6
Gain on sale of long-term investment (241)
Foreign exchange loss (gain) (59)
Site restoration expenditures (184)
Maintenance capital (8,992)

Cash available for distribution for the period 26,302

Distributions to partners: 27,891

To KEDCO 12,893
To KEDCO, electricity hedge and gas services contract 247
To all other Partners 3,946
To the Fund 10,805
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4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Accumulated Net Book

Cost Depreciation Value
$ $ $

Midstream facilities, December 31, 2001 550,613 (43,999) 506,614
Depreciation – (17,933) (17,933)
Net additions 41,157 – 41,157

Midstream facilities, December 31, 2002 591,770 (61,932) 529,838
Depreciation – (20,895) (20,895)
Net additions 19,154 19 19,173
Acquisitions (note 2) 34,852 (3,885) 30,967

Midstream facilities, December 31, 2003 645,776 (86,693) 559,083

During 2003, $3,922 (2002 – $1,365) of maintenance turnaround costs and general and administrative costs of $70
(2002 – $101) relating to certain capital projects were capitalized.

Additions to property, plant and equipment affect cash flows as follows:
2003 2002

$ $

Cost of additions 19,173 41,157
Adjustments: 

Dispositions 754 –
Capital contribution (note 11) – (28,570)
Increase in future site restoration – (720)

Additions to property, plant and equipment 19,927 11,867

Other assets include a gas turbine generator set for which project studies are underway to determine the most
economically viable location for its use. As the asset has not yet been placed in service, depreciation expense has not
been recognized.

5. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

2003 2002
As at December 31 $ $

Alberta Laterals Company Ltd. (a) – 1,218
Rimbey Pipe Line Co. Ltd. (b) 13,095 –

13,095 1,218

(a) On December 2003, the Partnership disposed of its 40.8% interest in the Alberta Laterals Company Ltd.
(“ALC”) for $1,460 cash, netting a gain of $241. The investment was accounted for using the equity method.
Equity earned on this investment during 2003 was nil (2002 – $18 loss). In 2002, the Partnership incurred a
$788 loss due to a permanent decline in the value of its investment. 

(b) The Partnership owns a 45.3% beneficial interest in Rimbey Pipe Line Co. Ltd. through its 100% ownership of
KEFL. The investment is accounted for using the equity method. 

2003 2002
As at December 31 $ $

Acquisition 14,047 –
Equity in earnings 1,086 –
Dividends received (2,038) –

Carrying value 13,095 –
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6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
Accumulated Net Book

Cost Depreciation Value
$ $ $

Marketing business, December 31, 2001 10,000 (2,057) 7,943
Amortization – (667) (667)

Marketing business, December 31, 2002 10,000 (2,724) 7,276
Amortization – (667) (667)

Marketing business, December 31, 2003 10,000 (3,391) 6,609

The marketing business is represented principally by long-term marketing agreements with ConocoPhillips and other
third parties, and associated industry expertise and relationships and is amortized over the estimated economic life
of 15 years.

7. DEBT 
2003 2002

As at December 31 $ $

Bank credit facilities (a) 23,500 –
Senior Secured Notes (b) 125,000 –

148,500 –
Less: current portion of debt (23,500) –

Long-term debt 125,000 –

(a) On May 30, 2003, the Partnership and certain financial institutions, led by the Royal Bank of Canada, entered
into a credit agreement for CAD$100,000 and US$50,000 under three separate tranches. Tranche A of
CAD$50,000 matures on May 29, 2004 but may be extended for one year beyond the term date. Tranche B of
CAD$50,000 matures on May 30, 2005. Tranche C was a non-revolving bridge facility of US$50,000 maturing
on November 26, 2003 and was repaid and cancelled on August 26, 2003. The credit facility bears interest at
the lenders’ rates for Canadian prime commercial loans or at Bankers’ Acceptances rates. 

The weighted average interest rate in 2003 was 4.82%. 

Security is provided by first charge over the Partnership’s assets. As at December 31, 2003, the balance
outstanding on the bank credit facilities is $23,500.

(b) An issue of long-term senior secured notes issue by the Partnership and KEFL was completed on August 26,
2003. The proceeds of the issue, $125 million, were used to repay the outstanding short-term borrowings under
the existing bank credit facilities. 

The new debt issue consists of three parts: Series A of $52,500 due in 2010, bearing fixed rates of interest at
5.79%, Series B of $52,500 due in 2013, bearing interest at 6.155%, and $20,000 of 5.42% senior secured
notes due in 2008. Interest is payable monthly. Security is provided by first charge over the Partnership’s assets. 

As at December 31, 2003, $1,215 of financing costs has been incurred to complete the senior secured notes
issue by the Partnership and KEFL. These costs have been deferred and are amortized over the remaining terms
of the related debt. Amortization expense of $54 has been recorded for the year ended December 31, 2003.
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8. FUTURE SITE RESTORATION AND ABANDONMENT 

The Partnership estimates future site restoration and abandonment costs to be $25,828 at December 31, 2003 
(2002 – $23,467) of which $6,303 (2002 - $5,870) has been accrued as a liability.

The site restoration provision in 2003 was $584 (2002 – $465) with actual site restoration expenditures incurred of
$304 (2002 – $137).

9. INCOME TAX

Income tax expense (recovery) is comprised of:
2003 2002

$ $

Current income tax 124 –
Future income tax (520) –

(396) –

Income taxes differ from the amounts, which would be obtained by applying statutory income tax rates as follows:

2003 2002
$ $

Income before tax expense 40,040 –
Less:

Non-taxable income attributable to the Partnership 39,389 –

Taxable income 651 –
Income tax at statutory rate of 37.79% 246 –
Equity in earnings from investments (410) –
Resource allowance (366) –
Large corporation tax 124 –
Other 10 –

(396) –

The temporary differences comprising the future income tax asset are as follows:

2003 2002
As at December 31 $ $

Property, plant and equipment (922) –
Non-capital losses carry forward 5,416 –
Equity investment (186) –
Intangible assets – –
Future site restoration 60 –
Financing fees (60) –
Resource allowance rate reduction (462) –
Other 54 –

Future income tax asset 3,900 –
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10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The following table summarizes the Partnership’s related party transactions:
2003 2002

$ $

Tariff expense for use of pipeline and NGL purchases 6,414 6,740
Operating allocation and NGL revenue 4,191 4,089
Operating expense and general and administrative cost 7,566 17,283
Equity earnings 1,085 –
Dividends 2,038 –
Purchases of NGL product from Partner – 1,065

The transactions summarized in the above table were made in the normal course of operations and were measured
at the exchange value or on a cost recovery basis, which represented the amount of consideration established and
agreed to by the related parties. 

The amounts due to the related parties are non-interest bearing, with no fixed terms of repayment.

2003 2002
As at December 31 $ $

Trade accounts receivable:
Partners and corporations controlled by a partner with 

significant influence 953 2,058
Advance to Partner – 38,412

Total due from related parties 953 40,470

Trade accounts payable:
Partners and corporations controlled by a partner with 

significant influence 457 4,362

Total due to related parties 457 4,362

11. PARTNERS’ EQUITY

(a) Comprehensive revaluation

Effective September 1, 2000, KEDCO purchased ConocoPhillips’ remaining 45.77% interest in the Partnership
effectively giving KEDCO 100% ownership interest. As a result of the reorganization, the Partnership’s assets
and liabilities were comprehensively revalued at September 1, 2000 to reflect the cost of KEDCO’s investment.
The asset revaluation was based on cash generation of the Partnership’s assets taking into consideration the
sustainability of the asset, development opportunities around the asset and future cash generation. Also at that
time, ConocoPhillips’ share of retained earnings was reclassified as comprehensive revaluation. The partners’
equity balance at August 31, 2000 was $35,258 of which ConocoPhillips’ share was 45.77% or $16,137. The
reduction in book value of the net assets and the related equity adjustment are summarized below:

Change in book value $

Property, plant and equipment (114,570)
ConocoPhillips’ share of partners’ equity at August 31, 2000 16,137

Comprehensive revaluation (98,433)

As at February 18, 2004, the Board of Directors approved a change to Partners’ equity by the elimination of the
comprehensive revaluation at December 31, 2003 of $98,433. 
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(b) Related party transaction adjustment 

(i) As disclosed in Note 2(a), on May 29, 2003, the Partnership acquired 100% of the outstanding common
shares of KEFL, a wholly owned subsidiary of KEDCO, in exchange for a $7,287 capital contribution in the
Partnership. The transaction has been recorded in these consolidated financial statements at the carrying
amount of KEFL’s assets and liabilities as shown in Note 2. The difference between the capital contribution
and the carrying values, of $8,068, has been credited to related party transaction adjustment. 

(ii) On May 29, 2003, the Partnership transferred certain capital assets to KEFL at cost, in exchange for shares
in KEFL. The transaction has been recorded at the carrying amount of the asset which is $32,949. The
future income tax impact of the difference between the shares in KEFL and the carrying amount, of $2,804,
has been credited to related party transaction adjustment. 

(iii) On December 14, 2001, the Partnership purchased an additional 3.33% of interest in Rimbey gas plant
from KEFL, a company controlled by KEDCO at the time, in exchange for a $6,500 promissory note due to
KEDCO. The transaction was recorded in at the carrying amount of the asset, which was $10,696. The
difference between the note and the carrying amount, of $4,196, has been credited to related party
transaction adjustment.

(c) Capital contribution

On June 30, 2002, the Partnership acquired KEDCO’s interest in the Paddle River Gas Gathering and Processing
Facilities. The transaction was treated as a capital contribution, at carrying value, of $28,570 to the Partnership
by KEDCO. The contribution increased KEDCO’s entitlement to the income, profits, losses, asset and capital of
the Partnership by 1.604% bringing KEDCO entitlement to partnership income to 71.364%.

12. COMPENSATION PLANS

In 2003 the Partnership adopted a Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP” or the “Plan”) that compensates officers,
directors and key employees and consultants by awarding units of the Fund. The Plan permits the Trustees of the
Fund to authorize the issuance of units from time to time. A maximum of 1,300,000 units have been specified for
granting from treasury under the Plan. Participants in the LTIP are granted rights to receive units of the Fund on
specified dates in the future. Per unit cash distributions of the Fund to its unitholders during the term of the LTIP will
be paid to the participants in the form of additional units, at the time the units are awarded. 

The Plan consists of two types of units, which are described below. The Partnership accounts for its grants under the
Plan in accordance with the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based compensation. The compensation
cost charged against income for all types of units was $588 in 2003.

(a) Performance Units

The Performance Units will vest 100% on the third anniversary on July 1, 2006. The final payout will be
determined by the financial performance of the Fund over the three-year period. The number of units to be
issued will be calculated by multiplying the number of units granted by an adjustment ratio and a payout
multiplier. The adjustment ratio increases the number of units granted to reflect the per unit cash distributions
paid by the Fund to its unitholders during the term of the LTIP. The payout multiplier is base upon the actual
three-year average annual cash distribution per unit of the Fund, relative to a base of $1.09 per unit. The table
below describes the relationship between the three-year average annual cash distribution per unit and the
payout multiplier. 
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Three-years
average annual cash
distribution per unit Payout

Less than $1.09 Nil
First range 1.09 to 1.18 50% – 99%
Second range 1.19 to 1.38 100% – 199%
Third range 1.39 and greater 200%

As of December 31, 2003, 125,400 Performance Units have been granted. The compensation cost recorded for
these units was $301 in 2003, using the closing market price of a unit of the Fund on December 31, 2003, an
adjustment ratio of 1.048 and an estimate of the payout multiplier of 60%. 

(b) Time Vested Units (“Restricted Units”)

Restricted Units will vest automatically, over a three-year period from the grant date on July 1, 2003, regardless
of the performance of the Fund. 

As of December 31, 2003, 71,700 Restricted Units have been granted. The compensation cost recorded for
these units was $287 in 2003, using the closing market price of a unit of the Fund on December 31, 2003 and
an adjustment ratio of 1.048. 

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Partnership is involved in various contractual agreements with ConocoPhillips. The agreements range from one
to fifteen years and comprise the purchase and processing of ConocoPhillips’ natural gas and NGL production in the
areas specified in the agreements. The purchase prices are based on current period market prices.

The Partnership has lease commitments relating to railway tank cars, vehicles, computer hardware, office space and
natural gas transportation agreements. The estimated annual minimum operating lease rental payments from these
commitments are as follows:

$

2004 5,173
2005 2,424
2006 1,682
2007 1,309
2008 1,241
Thereafter 5,369

17,198

There are legal actions involving the Partnership for which the ultimate results cannot be ascertained at this time.
Management does not expect the outcome of any of these proceedings to have a material effect on the financial
position or results of operations of the Partnership.

There are no material guarantees outstanding at December 31, 2003.

14. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Partnership enters into contracts to purchase and sell natural gas and natural gas liquids. These contracts are
exposed to commodity price risk between the time contracted volumes are purchased and sold. The Partnership
actively manages this risk by using energy-related futures, forwards, swaps and options and by balancing physical
and financial contracts in terms of volumes, timing of performance and delivery obligations. Management monitors
the Partnership’s exposure to the above risks and regularly reviews its financial instrument activities and all
outstanding positions.
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Energy price risk management
The Partnership routinely enters into price swaps and option agreements to mitigate its exposure to fluctuations in
the price of natural gas, natural gas liquids and electricity. Price swap agreements require payments to (or receipts
from) counter parties based on the differential between fixed and variable prices for commodities. The Partnership
routinely enters into forward currency exchange contracts and swaps to mitigate its exposure to fluctuations in
currency exchange rates. The contracts require the exchange of currencies between counter-parties at previously
agreed upon exchange rates. Management monitors the Partnership’s exposure to the above risks and regularly
reviews its use of financial instruments and all outstanding positions. The fair values of the derivatives listed below
represent an estimate of the amount that the Partnership would receive or pay if these instruments were closed out
at the end of the period. 

The estimated fair value of all financial instruments is based on quoted market prices and, if not available, on
estimates from third-party brokers or dealers. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, margin deposit,
accounts receivable, due from/to related parties, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximates their fair
value because the instruments are near maturity or have no fixed repayment terms. The fair value of the bank credit
facilities approximates fair value due to their floating rates of interest. 

Carrying Notional Fair Value
Amount Volume $

2003

Natural gas liquids:
Price swaps (maturing by August 2004) – 375,500 Bbls (1,116)
Price swaps (maturing by August 2004) – 487,638 Bbls 2,421

Gas:
Price swaps (matured in October 2003) – – –

Gas:
Options (matured in November 2003) – – –
Options (matured in November 2003) – – –

Hedge of electricity for processing plants:
Price swaps (matured in December 2003) – – –
Price swaps (matured in December 2003) – – –

Currency:
Forward contracts (maturing by March 2004) $270 USD$8,750 $270

2002
Natural gas liquids:
Price swaps (maturing October, 2003) – 217,282 Bbls (926)
Price swaps (maturing October, 2003) – 140,192 Bbls 607

Gas:
Price swaps (maturing October, 2003) – 912,000 GJs (810)

Gas:
Options (maturing October, 2003) – 760,000 GJs (426)
Options (maturing October, 2003) – 760,000 GJs 426

Hedge of electricity for processing plants:
Price swaps (maturing December, 2003) – 17,520 MwH 657
Price swaps (maturing December, 2003) – 87,600 MwH (3,044)

Currency:
Forward contracts – – –

Pursuant to an agreement between the Partnership and KEDCO, KEDCO is responsible for all payments by and to
the Partnership under the above electricity hedging contracts.
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Credit risk
The majority of the Partnership’s accounts receivable are due from entities in the oil and gas industry and are subject
to normal industry credit risks. Concentration of credit risk is mitigated by having a broad domestic and international
customer base. The Partnership evaluates and monitors the financial strength of its customers in accordance with its
credit policy. At December 31, 2003, the accounts receivable from the Partnership’s two largest customers amounted
to approximately 7% of accounts receivable (2002 – 11%). Revenue from the partnership’s two largest customers
amounted to 17% of total revenue in 2003 (2002 – 16%). With respect to counter parties for financial instruments
used for hedging purposes, the Partnership limits its credit risk through dealing with recognized futures exchanges
or investment grade financial institutions and by maintaining credit policies which significantly minimize overall
counter party credit risk.

Interest rate risk
The Partnership uses fixed and floating debt to finance its operations. The floating rate debt exposes the Partnership
to changes in interest payments as interest rates fluctuate. To manage this exposure, the Partnership maintains a
combination of fixed and floating rate borrowings. At December 31, 2003, fixed rate borrowings comprised of 84%
(2002 – nil of debt). 

Foreign currency rate risk 
The gathering and processing business generated 66% of 2003 operating margin (2002 – 68%) and is not subject
to foreign currency rate risk. All sales and virtually all purchases are denominated in Canadian dollars. In the NGL
marketing business, approximately USD$104,390 of 2003 sales were priced in U.S. dollars (2002 – USD$94,595).
Each change in currency exchange rate of 1% could therefore increase or decrease earnings by $1,044. 

15. CHANGES IN NON-CASH WORKING CAPITAL

2003 2002
$ $

Cash provided by (used in):
Margin deposit 229 186
Accounts receivable 15,349 (14,417)
Due from related parties 39,517 (32,147)
Inventory (8,424) (13,938)
Prepaid expenses (2,401) 390
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (12,215) 8,498
Distributions payable 3,689 –
Deposits payable 20 –
Due to related parties (3,905) (11,399)

31,859 (62,827)
Less: 

Working capital acquired in KEFL (3,411) –
Change in non-cash working capital related to distributions 3,689 –
Change in non-cash working capital related to financing activities 103 (6,294)

Change in non-cash working capital related to operating activities 31,478 (56,533)
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16. SEGMENTED INFORMATION 

The Partnership has two reportable segments: Facilities and Marketing. Facilities include natural gas gathering and
processing as well as natural gas liquids processing, transportation, and storage. The NGL marketing business consists
of marketing of by-products recovered from the processing of raw gas, including NGLs and sulphur as well as services
provided to its customers.

Facilities Marketing Corporate Total

2003

Revenue1 100,141 638,093 1,060 739,294
Intersegment revenue (1,820) – – (1,820)

External revenue 98,321 638,093 1,060 737,474
Cost of sales and operating expenses (47,549) (613,693) – (661,242)

50,772 24,400 1,060 76,232

Depreciation and amortization (19,348) (667) (1,548) (21,563)
General and administrative 

and interest and other – – (14,043) (14,043)
Site restoration (584) – – (584)

Income (loss) before tax 30,840 23,733 (14,531) 40,042

Identifiable assets 625,939 116,316 13,602 755,857

Capital expenditures 17,880 – 1,374 19,254

2002

Revenue1 85,456 563,215 580 649,251
Intersegment revenue (2,380) – – (2,380)

External revenue 83,076 563,215 580 646,871
Cost of sales and operating expenses (40,023) (543,623) – (583,646)

43,053 19,592 580 63,225

Depreciation and amortization (16,515) (667) (1,418) (18,600)
General and administrative 

and interest and other – – (12,003) (12,003)
Site restoration (465) – – (465)

Income (loss) before tax 26,073 18,925 (12,841) 32,157

As at December 31, 2002
Identifiable assets 582,862 121,512 48,642 753,016

Capital expenditures 11,854 – 13 11,867

1 Facilities revenue includes equity earnings (loss) from investment in Rimbey Pipe Line Co. Ltd. of $1,086 

and $nil for year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 respectively.

Export sales
Revenue from sales of natural gas, NGLs made outside of Canada was $27,889 (2002 – $17,244).
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Fund Information
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KEYSPAN UNIT PRICE – KEY.UN ($ per share)

Initial Public Offering Date May 30, 2003

Initial Public Offering Price ($/unit) $10.00

Exchange Toronto Stock Exchange

Ticker KEY.UN

Outstanding Units (December 2003) 17,000,000

S&P Stability Rating SR-3

Average Trading Volume (units/day) 86,349

High Close ($/unit) $12.50

Low Close ($/unit) $10.53

Total Units Traded 12,779,660

Total Value of Units Traded $143,293,549

TAX INFORMATION
The Fund is a mutual fund trust as defined in the Income Tax Act (Canada).

Units in the Fund are qualified investments for registered retirement savings

plans, registered retirement income funds, deferred profit sharing plans, and

registered education savings plans.

KeySpan 2003 cash distributions are 100% return of capital for residents of

Canada. Tax information for both residents and non-residents of Canada can

be found on KeySpan’s website at www.keyspancanada.com or by contacting

KeySpan’s Investor Relations department.

GLOSSARY
Acid gas hydrogen sulphide (H2S) or carbon dioxide (CO2) or a

combination of H2S and CO2.

Acid gas injection the injection of acid gas into a suitable underground
geological formation.

bbls and bbls/d barrels and barrels per day

Butane a natural gas liquid (NGL) with the molecular formula C4H10

CO2 carbon dioxide

Condensate a natural gas liquid (NGL) consisting primarily of pentanes
and heavier liquids

H2S hydrogen sulphide

mmcf/d million cubic feet per day

NGL or NGLs natural gas liquids, consisting of any one or a combination 
of propane, butane and condensate

Propane a natural gas liquid (NGL) with the molecular formula C3H8

Raw gas natural gas before it has been subjected to any processing 
that may be required for it to become suitable for sale

Raw NGL mix NGLs that have been separated from the raw gas but have
not yet been subjected to the processing required to convert
them into propane, butane or condensate

Sales gas natural gas that has been treated in a natural gas processing
facility and is suitable for sale

Sour gas natural gas containing more than one percent H2S

Sulphur a yellow mineral extracted from natural gas

Sweet gas natural gas that contains no H2S or less than one percent 
H2S when produced

2003 CASH DISTRIBUTIONS

Distribution 
Record Date Payment Date Amount (Cdn $/unit)

June 30, 2003 July 15, 2003 $0.0908

July 31, 2003 August 15, 2003 $0.0908

August 29, 2003 September 15, 2003 $0.0908

September 30, 2003 October 15, 2003 $0.0908

October 31, 2003 November 17, 2003 $0.0908

November 28, 2003 December 15, 2003 $0.0908

December 31, 2003 January 15, 2004 $0.0908

Total 2003 Cash Distributions Declared $0.6356
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The Trustees and Directors of KeySpan and the Fund are committed to maintaining a high standard of

corporate governance. The corporate governance practices of both the Fund and the Managing Partner

are described in more detail in the Fund’s information circular.

Management of the Fund
Under the provision of the Fund’s Declaration of Trust, three Trustees are responsible for supervising

the activities and managing the affairs of the Fund. The Trustees are elected annually by the

unitholders. A majority of the Trustees must be unrelated, meaning they must be independent from

the Partnership and its affiliates and free from any interest that would materially interfere with their

ability to act in the best interests of the Fund. The current Trustees, Peter Lougheed, Nancy Laird and

William Stedman, are all unrelated.

Management of the Partnership
KeySpan Canada Management Ltd. is the Managing Partner and has responsibility for the business and

affairs of KeySpan Energy Canada Partnership. With exclusive authority to make all decisions

regarding the Partnership, the Managing Partner has an obligation to exercise its powers and discharge

its duties honestly, in good faith and in the best interests of the Partnership. The Board of Directors 

of the Managing Partner consists of nine members, including the three Trustees of the Fund. Five

members of the Board are independent, three represent KeySpan Corporation and one represents

KeySpan’s management.

Committees
To assist the Board in its overall stewardship role, permanent committees have been appointed with

specific responsibilities delegated by the Board of Directors.

◗ Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring and overseeing the quality of the financial reporting

and the systems of internal control and risk management, and is the ultimate authority to which the

Fund’s internal and external auditors are accountable. The committee consists of three members,

Wesley Twiss, William Stedman and Michael Davies, all of whom are independent.

◗ Compensation and Governance Committee is responsible for the quality and effectiveness of the Fund’s

corporate governance practices and policies including strategic planning, succession planning and

developing policies on disclosure, confidentiality and trading in securities. The committee also reviews

and recommends compensation for the officers, employees and directors. The committee consists of

three members, Nancy Laird, Peter Lougheed, and Neil Nichols, two of whom are independent.

◗ Health, Safety and Environment Committee is responsible for ensuring that employees are provided with

a safe environment in which to perform their duties, and for monitoring and overseeing the policies

and procedures for ensuring compliance with environmental regulatory requirements. The committee

consists of three members, William Stedman, Jim Bertram and Neil Nichols, one of whom is

independent.

Corporate Governance
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